SIOUX FALLS PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD MEETING
Wednesday, October 30, 2024

4:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting

City Hall Media Room — 224 W. 9" St.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

1. Roll call and determination of quorum

2. Approval of minutes from September 18, 2024, meeting
3.  Public Comment

4. Unfinished business

5. New business
a. 2025 Golf Course Rates — Don Kearney
h. Management Agreement for Operation of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East
Sioux Falls Historic Site- Brett Kollars
Great Bear Financial Audit- Brett Kollars
Amendment Chapter 95- Fees — Jackie Nelson
Amendment Chapter 95- Alcoholic Beverages - Jackie Nelson
Jacobson Plaza Food And Beverage Services Agreement Between City of Sioux Falls
and Washington Pavilion Management, Inc.- Jackie Nelson

"0 0o

6. Report of Director of Parks and Recreation
a. Aquatics Report — August
b, Golf Course Report — August

7. ltems added after the agenda deadline
a. The Parks and Recreation Board may include other such business as may come before
this body.
8. Reading of communications to the Board

9. Open board discussion

10. Adjournment

Persons requiring special accommodation for participation in any programs or activities sponsored
by Sioux Falls Parks and Recreation should call 605-367-8222 during regular business hours at
least 48 hours prior to the event. Special needs will be accommodated whenever reasonably
possible.




September 18, 2024

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIOUX FALLS PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD was held
on Wednesday, September 18, 2024, at 4 p.m. at Great Bear

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum
Members present; Jim Stavenger, Rick Weber, Teresa Cauwels, Mike Begeman, Justin Smith,
Brooke Wegener & Mick Conlin (arrived at 4:08pm)

Members absent: none.

Parks and Recreation staff present: Brett Kollars, Assistant Director, Mackenzie Songstad, City
Services Technician

Others Present: Catherine Schlimgen, City Attorney'’s Office; Dan Grider, Great Bear; Steven
Sanford, Great Bear Management, Inc; Mike Cooper, Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum.

Approval of Minutes (August 21, 2024)
A motion to approve the minutes was made by Wegener and seconded by Stavenger. Motion
passed unanimously with all present Board members voting yes.

Public Input
None.

Unfinished Business
None.

New Business

Great Bear Annual Report: A motion to accept the Great Bear Annual Report was made by
Cauwels and seconded by Wegener. Motion passed unanimously with all present Board
members voting yes.

Management Agreement for Operation of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux
Falls Historic Site: A motion to recommend approval of the Management Agreement for
Operation of the Mary Jo-Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falis Historic Site was made by
Smith and seconded by Cauwels. Motion passed unanimously with all present Board members
voting yes.

Report of Director of Parks and Recreation:

Don Kearney started his report stating that a Delbridge working group held a meeting on Friday,
September 13, 2024, they are seeking request for qualification and expression of interest from
museums, non- profits and other qualified entities. Applications will be available starting Friday,
September 20, 2024, with a deadline of December 12, 2024. Kearney mentioned that Teresea
Cauwels has been appointed by the Mayor to serve on the southern Sioux Falls aquatics
committee. The first meeting is scheduled for kick off on October 2, 2024. Kearney encouraged
board members to talk with neighbors and citizens about having a plan for removal of ash trees
on private property. Kearney noted that the golf courses are doing very well and having a great
year. Kearney stated Eimwood Club House is under construction, excavation on the club house
has started and footings could be poured next week. Kearney noted that next week, they will
start on excavation of the First Tee program and cart storage building. Finally, Kearney




September 18, 2024

mentioned that the team is gearing up for the Westside Wellness Center operations. They are
working on hiring full time staff and IT transitions.

Items Added After the Agenda Deadline
None.

Reading of Communications to the Board
None.

There being no further business, Conlin made a motion to adjourn. Meeting adjourned.

Secretary

Approved by:

President
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s YOUR CITY » YOUR COURSES

ch Pa 16 (
Adult All Time Pass $1,095 | $1,145 | $1,185 ' ONLY OPTION FOR 2025 "= 8625 for $525
Adult Weekday Pass $795 $845 |- 'SS?G . NOTE: Punch Passes may he used for gresn & cart fees during thie 2025 golf
Senior All Time (over 65) $895 $945 | 5995 season. Punch Passes are non transferable and explre at the end of 2025 golf
Senlor Weelday (over 65) $645 $696 | 5720 1 [season, Not eligible for early discounts or Season Pass Perls, No discounts are
Young Executive All Time (24-40) $750 $800 '-"$8_5 €}.' given when punch pass dollars expire in the fall.
Young Executive Weekday (24-40) $545 $595 $620
Student All Time (19 to age 23) $395 | $445 | $470 - -
Al itad 9- Holes Prairie Green & Elmwood
Youth Pass {18 & Undler) $275 $325 |.$350 9 Holes - Kuehn Park $13 $14 $14
Kuehn Park & East Course All Time $475 $525 | $575 18 - Holes @ Afl Three Courses $21 $23 523

Add Spouse to any Season Pass

$275 - $350
AT 18 Hole All Time Cart Pass $800 $850 $850
Add Family to any Season Pass $350 $400 ‘5425
Add Spouse/Family to i
725 25
Huohn Park & East Course $200 $250 | $_27_5 18 Hole Weekday Cart Pass $675 $ 87
L 18 Hole Family Cart Pass $1445 | $1,165 | $1,165
-afly Buy Sale. 9 Hole Weelay Cart Pass $500 $550 $550
. Black Friday - January 31st = 9 Hole Family Cart Pass $675 5725 4725

ce
9 Holes Weelday Prairie Green $25.00 S$28.00: Small Bucket 1. token .
9 Holes Weekday Eimwood $25.00 | $27.00 | $28.00 = Medjum Bucket 2 tokens $4.4.00
18 Holes Weekday Prairie Green $37.00 | §41.00 | $41.00 Large Buchet 3 tokens
18 Holes Weekday Elmwood $37.00 | $41.00 | $41.00 Range Passes
9 Holes Weekend Prairie Green $32.00 |834.00 | $3500" Unlimted Adult Pass :
9 Holes Weekend Elmwood $32.00 | 534.00 | $35.00 Unlimited Famlly Pass 4520
18 Holes Weekend Prairie Green $43.00 | $47.00 | $47.00 Unlimited Youth Pass 4$375
18 Holes Weekend Eimwood $43.00 | $47.00 | $47.00
9 Holes Weekday Kuehn Park $19.00 | $21.00 | $22.00 | | . tice it L
18 Holes Weekday Kuehn Park $25.00 | $29.00 | 528.00 Collegiate (per team) Fall & Spring
9 Holes Weekend Kuehn Park $21,00 | $23,00 | $24.00 High School (school year)
18 Holes Weekend Kuehn Park $27.00 | 534.00 | $31.00
9 Holes Weekday East Course $21.00 | $23.00 | $24.00. [
18 Holes Weekday East Course $29.00 | $33.00 { $33.00 Al Courses Negotiated by LGM
9 Holes Weeltend East Course $22.00 | $24.00 | $25,00°
NOTE: Dynamioe Onling Pricing avallabla afong with other discounts, promotions, & speclals as
18 Holes Weekend East Course $31,00 | $35,00 | $35.00 applicable based on season & manager discretion. *Cannot be combined with any
other promotion or discount
Fast 5 Course (5 holes) $6.00 | $5.00 | $5.00
Fast 5 Course (10 holes) $8.00 | $10.00 | $10.00




2025 Fee Comparisons

9 Hole Weekday Green Fee 528 + tax

East Course =524 + tax
Kuehn Park= 522 + tax

18 Hole Weekday Green Fee $41 + tax
East Course =533 + tax
Kuehn Park=529 + tax

9 Hole Weekend Green Fee $35 + tax
East Course = $25 + tax
Kuehn Park=524 + tax

18 Hole Weekend Green Fee $47+ tax
East Course =535 + tax
Kuehn Park= 531 + tax

G/18 =Hole Cart Fees
S15 /%23 + tax

S Hole Weekday Green™
Fee=$35 o

18 Hole Weekday Green
Fee = $50

9 Hole Weekend Green
Fee = 840

18 Hole Weekend Green
Fee = S55

8 /18 Hole Cart fees
$16/525

9 Hole Weekday Green
Fee = S35

18 Hole Weekday Green
Fee = $50

9 Hole Weekend Green
Fee =S40

18 Hole Weekend Green
Fee = §55

5/18 Hole Cart fees
516/525

- 9 Hole-Weekday Green

Fee = 25 + tax

18 Hole Weekday Green

Fee = §38 + tax

9 Hole Weekend Green
Fee = $30 + tax

18 Hole Weekend Green
Fee = 543 + tax

9/18 Hole Cart fees
S14/622 + tax




Management Agreement for Operation of the
Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site

Agreement made , 2024, between the City of Sioux Falls, SD (the
“City") and Wegner Arboretum Saciety, a nonprofit organization organized under the
laws of the state of South Dakota (the “Manager”).

The parties to this Agreement, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations
set out herein, agree as follows:

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City and the Manager acknowledge that they, along with Minnehaha
County, are parties to a certain Cooperative Agreement for the Development and
Operation of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site (the
“Cooperative Agreement”) dated as June 12, 2008, and filed as City Agreement

No. 08-0077. Nothing herein is intended to amend or terminate the Cooperative
Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect. The parties acknowledge that in
this Agreement the City is delegating to the Manager certain responsibilities under the
Cooperative Agreement, but this Agreement shall otherwise be subject to the
Cooperative Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City owns and maintains assets held at the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum
and East Sioux Falls Historic Site; and

WHEREAS, the City and Manager will work collaboratively to ensure the long-term
viability of Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site for the public’s
enjoyment; and

WHEREAS, the City desires the Manager to manage and operate the Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site, including the Mabel and Judy Jasper
Educational Center (the “Educational Center”), Jasper Family Garden, and all other
amenifies consistent with the most current master plan as approved by the Parks and
Recreation Board;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the
legal sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Defined Terms

Defined Terms. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the
meanings:

ADA means the American with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. Sections 12101-12213, as
amended, as it now exists, and as it may be amended in the future.

Agreement No.
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Budget means a projection of revenues and expenses for a specified purpose and
pericd of time.

Capital Equipment means any and all furniture, fixtures, and equipment including
supplies, rental equipment, televisions, computers, printers, software, sound equipment,
office equipment, and any other property the Manager is required to supply to support
the delivery of services to be provided by the Manager as set forth in Exhibit A.

Capital Improvements mean any additions, alterations, renovations, repairs, and
improvements to the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site with
an initial dollar cost of not less than $2,500 per project. Capital improvements will not
include routine maintenance and repair projects, which in the aggregate do not exceed
$2,500 per project. Capital improvement items may or may not be capitalized as capital
assets on the City’s balance sheets depending upon the City's asset capitalization
policy in effect at the time of acquisition.

Laws mean all federal, state, local, and municipal regulations, ordinances, statutes,
rules, laws, and constitutional provisions.

Operating Account is as defined in Section Eleven, subparagraph 14, of this Agreement.

Operating Expenses mean the expenses and expenditures incurred by the Manager in
promoting, operating, maintaining, and managing the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and
East Sioux Falls Historic Site that are required to be accounted for in the operating
account, all as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Operating expenses include, but are not limited to, employee compensation including
honuses, benefits; operating supplies, materials, and parts costs; costs of any
independent contractors; advertising, marketing, group sales, and public relations costs;
commissions, data processing costs. The Manager's costs of procuring, administering,
and maintaining the insurance policies required pursuant to this Agreement; printing and
stationery costs; postage costs; banking services fees; equipment rental costs;
computer equipment purchase and lease costs, Internet, cable and telephone charges,
telephone line(s) which have not been provided by the City; copier/printer/facsimile
equipment lease charges, software costs, and website construction, maintenance, and
hosting costs; repairs and maintenance; safety and medical expenses; point-of-sale
charges. Operating expenses do not include (i) the cost of property taxes for the
facilities; (ii) telephone lines provided by the City; (iii) utility charges that are the City’s
responsibility as set forth in Section Eleven, subparagraph 13.

Section One
Management

1. General. The City grants to the Manager the exclusive right to operate, manage,
market, develop, and promote the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls
Historic Site as set forth in this Agreement including, but not limited to, the day-to-~
day operations of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site
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and all activities therein, provided that the Manager must follow all applicable laws
and the City’s policies and guidelines involving the expenditure of City funds.

2. Property Condition. The Manager accepts the premises as being in an “as is’
condition and shall return the premises in good working order, normal wear and tear
excepted, in the event the Manager shall cease to manage the Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site.

3. City Access to Premises, The City may enter upon the Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site premises at any reasonable time for
the purpose of inspecting the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls
Historic Site, frash collection and disposal, making repairs, or for any other
reasonable purpose.

4. Public Access. Subject to the approved Operational Plan as set forth in
Section Fourteen, Manager shall ensure that the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and
East Sioux Falls Historic Site is available to all members of the public and that it will
not enter into any leases or other agreements providing for the exclusive use of the
Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site by any person other
than on a temporary basis.

5. Contract Manager. The Director of Parks and Recreation (the “Director”) or his
designee(s) will serve as Contract Manager. The Contract Manager will represent
the City's interests to the Manager and will oversee the performance of the
Manager. The Manager shall report to and be responsible to the Contract Manager.

6. Execution of Contracts. The Manager shall have the right to negotiate, execute
(in Manager’'s own name), deliver, and administer any and all service contracts and
any other contracts involving the day-to-day operations of the Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site. Any such material agreement shall
contain standard indemnification and insurance obligations on the part of each
vendor, licensee, or service provider, as is customary for the type of service or
obligation being provided or performed by such parties. All donor and sponsorship
agreements the Manager enters into, and any agreements entered into by the
Manager involving the expenditure of funds exclusively from the accounts of the
Manager described in Section Eleven, subparagraph 15, shall be in the name of the
Manager and are exempt from the requirements of this section as long as the
Manager agrees to not bind the City to any conditions, stipulations, or terms that
would commit the City to doing an act in the event the Manager no longer manages
the operations of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site.
In addition, all donor agreements entered into by the Manager after the date of this
Agreement shall contain a statement indicating the donor’s intended disposition of
funds donated under such agreement in the event this Agreement terminates and
the Manager ceases to manage the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux
Falls Historic Site. In connection with any contracts involving the day-to-day
operation of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site
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(except for contracts that are terminable upon 30 days’ notice or less), the Manager
will include in such documents:

(i) The right of Manager to assign, without cost, all of its rights and
obligations to the City or to any successor management company retained
by the City upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement; and

(i) The right of the City to assign, without cost, its rights and obligations to
any successor management company retained by the City.

Section Two
Term

~ This Agreement will commence on January 1, 2025 (the “Effective Date”) and will
continue in full force and effect through December 31, 2029, (the “Management Term”)
unless earlier terminated under the provisions of this Agreement.

Upon the termination of this Agreement, the Manager will yield and deliver peaceably to
the City possession of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic
Site (including any personal property belonging to the City) and any alterations,
additions, or improvements thereto, promptly and in good condition, order, and repair,
except for reasonable wear and tear.

Section Three
Civil Rights and ADA

1. ADA Requirements. With respect to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the
Manager will comply with Title Ill of the ADA and the provisions of auxiliary aids or
alternate services as may be required by the ADA. The Manager is obligated to
ensure the accessibility of any and all events taking place within the facility’s
structures and on the facility’s property. The Manager is required to comply and be
financially responsible for compliance with Title 11l of the ADA in connection with
any event or activity held at the facility or on its property.

Furthermore, the Manager will require every licensee, lessee, tenant, promoter, or
user of any portion of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic
Site to comply and to be financially responsible for compliance with Title lif of the
ADA in connection with any activities of such licensee, tenant, promoter, or user at
the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site.

Nothing in this section or elsewhere in this Agreement will require the Manager to
undertake any of the foregoing compliance activities, nor will the Manager have any
liability under this Agreement if compliance requires any capital improvements or
capital equipment purchases, unless the City provides funds for the needed capital
improvements and capital equipment purchases.
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2. Civil Rights. In addition to the undertaking required above, the Manager agrees to
observe and fully comply with all nondiscrimination and antiharassment provisions
of any federal, state, or local laws, which would include, but is not limited to:

(i) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq., and 45 C.F.R.
Part 80).

(i) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq., and 29 C.F.R.
Parts 1602, 1604, 1605, and 1606).

(i) The Age Discrimination in Employment Act (29 U.S.C. 621 et seq., and 29 C.F.R.
Part 1625).

(iv) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., and 45 C.F.R.
Parts 90 and 91).

(v) The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1890, as amended.

(vi) The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794 et seq., and 45 C.F.R. Parts 84
and 85).

(vii} The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (42 USC 1635 et seq.,
and 29 CFR 1635).

Without limiting the foregoing, the Manager will not discriminate against any person
based on the individual’s race, religion, color, sex, national origin, ancestry,
disability, age, genetic information, or creed. Manager will include the phrase “equal
opportunity employer” or a similar phrase approved under South Dakota law in all
solicitations or advertisements for employees.

The Manager will permit access to any and all records pertaining to hiring and
employment and to other pertinent data and records for the purpose of enabling
any investigative agency, commission, or court, or its representatives, to ascertain
compliance with the above provisions.

Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, if Manager is
found liable under or to be in violation of any human rights or antidiscrimination
laws under a final agency decision or court order, the Manager will be deemed to
have materially breached this Agreement and the Agreement may be immediately
terminated, in whole or part, by the City, and the Manager shall be liable for any
costs or expenses incurred by the City in obtaining from other sources the services
to be rendered or performed under the contract so terminated or canceled.

si\as\alatkhatkls024.docx 5



Section Four
Compensation

The Manager shall receive no fees or other compensation for its services and shall pay
to the City no rent or other charges for the use of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and
East Sioux Falls Historic Site assets.

Section Five
Scope of Services

The Manager shall provide services necessary for the operation and management of
the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site as set forth in

Exhibit A. The City shall provide for the City’s responsibilities as set forth in Exhibit A.
The Manager shali refrain from any business practice or promotional activity that is
injuricus or detrimental to the City or the goodwill associated with the Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site and the parks and recreation system of the
City.

The Manager shall not make any material changes in the general purposes for which it
was organized as currently set forth in its Articles of Incorporaticn without the prior
consent of the Contract Manager.

Section Six
Improvements

Any improvements made using City funds shall be done in accordance with

Section Thirteen of this Agreement. Any improvements which do not use City funding
must be preapproved by the Contract Manager as defined in Section One paragraph 5
of this Agreement. The Manager shall submit the proposed concept of the
improvements in writing to the Contract Manager. The Contract Manager, in his or her
discretion, may require the parties to enter into a memorandum of understanding setting
forth the terms and responsibilities of the parties prior to approval of the improvements.
The City may impose conditions upon the installation of any improvements. Any
improvements donated to the Arboretum shall become the property of the City. Violation
of any of the conditions shall constitute grounds for termination of this Agreement.

Section Seven
Compliance with Laws

The Manager shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local ordinances and
resolutions, statutes, rules, and regulations that may apply to the operation of the Mary
Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site, including any state competitive
bid laws when City funds are expended. The Manager shall also comply with the City's
Parks and Recreation Policies and Guidelines to the extent applicable to the Mary Jo
Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site, except in the event such policies
or guidelines conflict with the terms of this Agreement.
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Section Eight
Insurance

1. City-Required Insurance\. The City at its own expense shall procure and maintain
property and liability insurance with insurance companies or pools licensed or
authorized to do business in South Dakota, or self-insure for an equivalent amount.

2. Manager-Required Insurance. The Manager, at its cost, shall secure the
insurance specified below. All insurance secured by the Manager under the
provisions of this section shall be issued by insurance companies acceptable to the
City. The insurance specified in this section may be in a policy or policies of
insurance, primary or excess. Cettificates of all required insurance shall be
provided to the City upon execution of this Agreement.

da.

Workers’ compensation insurance providing the statutory limits required by
South Dakota law, if the Manager has any employees. In addition, if the
Manager has any employees, it shall provide Coverage B, Employer's Liability
Coverage, of not less than $100,000 each accident, $100,000 disease-policy
limits. The reguired fimit may be met by excess liability (umbrella) coverage.

Commercial general liability insurance providing occurrence form
contractual, personal injury, bodily injury, and a property damage liability
coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 general
aggregate, and $2,000,000 aggregate products and completed operations. The
required limit may include excess liability (umbrelia) coverage. The policy shall
name the City and its representatives as an additional insured. If “occurrence
form” insurance is not available, “claims made” insurance will be acceptable.
The policy shall be maintained for three years after completion of this
Agreement.

Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, nonowned, and hired
automobiles, trucks, and trailers. The coverage shall be as broad as that found
in the standard comprehensive automobile liability policy with limits of not less
than $1,000,000 combined single-limit each occurrence. The required limit may
include excess lability (umbrella) coverage.

Liquor liability insurance naming the City as an additional insured with
single-limit coverage for personal and bodily injury and property damage of at
least one million dollars ($1,000,000) for each occurrence.

At the City's request, Manager shall obtain such other insurance that is
customary and standard for protection against claims, liabilities, and losses
connected with the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic
Site. The insurance required in subsection “d” above shali be provided as
specifically directed by the City.

The Manager will provide the City with at least 30 days’ written notice of an
insurer's intent to cancel or not renew any of the insurance coverages.
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The City's approval or acceptance of certificates of insurance does not
constitute City assumption of responsibility for the validity of any insurance
policies nor does the City represent that the above coverages and limits are
adequate to protect any individual/group/business, its consultants’ or
subcontractors’ interests, and assumes no liability therefor,

3. Blanket Policies. All insurance may be obtained by Manager or the City by
endorsement or equivalent means under blanket insurance policies, provided that
such blanket policies fulfill the requirements specified herein. All blanket insurance
policies shall be in form and substance with deductible limits and self-insured
retention, which are consistent with those that are generally accepted by the City.

4. City as Additional Insured. All insurance provided under this section shall name
the City and its duly authorized representatives as an additional insured. The party
procuring such insurance shall deliver {o the other party policies or cerlified copies,
signed by an authorized representative of the insurer, or in the case of blanket
policies, certified abstract policies with respect to all policies so procured, including
existing, additional, and renewal policies and, in the case of insurance about to
expire, shall deliver evidence of renewal in binder form with respect to the renewal
policies not less than 45 days prior to the respective dates of expiration, and
thereafter shall deliver policies, as aforesaid, or as the case may be, within 60 days
succeeding the expiration dates.

5. Notice of Cancellation. All policies of insurance provided for under this section
shall, to the extent obtainable, have attached thereto an endorsement that such
policy shall not be canceled or materially changed without at least 30 days’ prior
written notice {o the City, Manager, and any additional insured.

6. Claims. Manager and the City shall cooperate in a prompt manner in connection
with the making of any claims and the colliection of any insurance money that may
be due and shall execute and deliver such proofs of loss and other instruments that
may be required for the purpose of obtaining the recovery of any such insurance
monies.

7. Failure to Maintain insurance. If the Manager fails to obtain and maintain the
insurance required pursuant to this section or if any insurer cancels or modifies
such insurance without the City’s consent, at the City’s election (but without any
obligation to do so), the City may procure similar insurance coverage and Manager
shall reimhurse the City for any premiums paid by the City within ten days of
demand therefor. Any amounts unpaid shall accrue interest at the New York Prime
Rate plus 5 percent from the day incurred. Manager shall not perform work during
any period when any policy of insurance required hereunder is not in effect unless it
gives evidence to the reascnable satisfaction of the City of the unavailability of such
insurance.

8. Risk Management. The Manager shall cooperate in the implementation of any loss

control recommendations, insurance coverage reviews, and collection appraisals
for insurance purposes of the City.
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Section Nine
Independent Contractor Status/Employees

1. Personnel. Excluding City employees, Manager shall select, employ, and
supervise any and all of the personne! necessary or required to carry out the
services to be provided by the Manager as set forth in Exhibit A ("Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falfs Historic Site Employees”). All personnel so
employed shall be employees or independent contractors of the Manager, and the
terms of their employment or engagement, including compensation, shall be at the
sole discretion of the Manager. The salaries and all additional costs of engagement
of the aforementioned personnel employed or contracted by Manager shall be
borne by Manager.

2. Not City Employees. Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic
Site employees shall in every instance be deemed employees of Manager and not
of the City. The City shall have no right to supervise or direct such employees.

3. Reports. Manager shall prepare and file punctually when due all forms, reports,
and returns required by law relating to the employment of personnel of the Mary Jo
Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site or the operation of the Mary
Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site.

4. Independent Contractor. Manager will not represent to anyone that its
relationship to the City is other than that of an independent contractor, and the City
and Manager may so inform any parties with whom they deal and may take any
other reasonable steps to carry out the intent of this subsection.

5. City Approval of Executive Director. The City has approved Mike Cooper as the
Executive Director of the Manager. !f during the Management Term, Mike Cooper
is no longer the Executive Director and a vacancy exits in the position of the
Executive Director, then prior to the Manager’s appointment of an Executive
Director, the Manager will seek the Contract Manager’s approval with respect to
the qualification of the Executive Director proposed by the Manager. If a proposed
Executive Director is not reasonably acceptable to the Contract Manager, Manager
will submit names and resumes until the Contract Manager reasonably accepts a
candidate for assignment to the Executive Director position.

Section Ten
Indemnification

1. Protect Against Liability. Manager will use its commercially reasonable efforts
that are consistent with industry standards applicable to similar facilities to not do or
permit any act or thing to be done on the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East
Sioux Falls Historic Site premises that subjects the City to liability or responsibility
for injury, damage to persons or property, or to any lability by reason of any
violation of law or of any requirement. Manager shall use its best efforts to exercise
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such control over the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site
so as to fully protect the City against any such liability. In addition, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, Manager shall indemnify and save harmless the City, and
the City shall indemnify and save harmless the Manager against and from all
liabilities, suits, obligations, fines, damages, penalties, claims, costs, charges, and
expenses, including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees and disbursements, which
may be imposed upon or asserted against or reasonably incurred by the City or the
Manager or any agency or subdivision thereof or their respective agents,
employees, officers, or directors (the “indemnities”) by reason of the acts or
omissions of the other or its affiliates or the performance of each of their obligations
hereunder, unless the same shall have been caused solely by the negligent or
willful acts of such indemnities. If damage to the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and
East Sioux Falls Historic Site results from any removal made by the Manager or its
agents, the Manager or tenant will repair the damage at its sole expense.

2. Insurance. The obligation of Manager under this section shall not in any way be
affected by the absence in any case of covering insurance or by the failure or
refusal of any insurance carrier to perform any obligation on its part under
insurance policies affecting the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls
Historic Site.

3. Indemnification. Subject to Section Seventeen, subparagraph 6, of this
Agreement, if any claim, action, or proceeding is made or brought against any
indemnitee by reason pursuant to this section, then, upon demand by such
indemnitee, the City or the Manager at its sole cost and expense, shall resist or
defend such claim action or proceeding in such indemnitee’s name, if necessary,
by the attorneys for the City or the Manager's insurance carrier (if such claim,
action, or proceeding is covered by insurance), otherwise by such attorneys as the
other party shall approve. The parties agree that if the other party is named as
party to an action, the other party will reasonably cooperate in the conduct of the
proceedings.

Section Eleven
Accounting

1. Collection of Receipts/Payment of Expenses. The Manager shall be responsible
for the collection of all receipts generated by business operations at the Mary Jo
Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site, and the payment of all
operating expenses incurred in the business operations associated with providing
the services to be rendered by the Manager as set forth in Exhibit A, and the
Manager shall account for the same consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

2. Use of Income. The Manager will use all income received from the operation of the
Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site and concessions for
the services to be rendered by the Manager as set forth in Exhibit A. It will expend
all operating income in a manner it deems to be in the best interests of the Mary Jo
Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site. The Manager will remain a
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nonprofit corporation. All operating income in excess of expenditures shall be
placed in a fund or a reserve account to meet unexpected expenditures of the Mary
Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site.

Rent of Facilities. The Manager shall have the exclusive right to rent or otherwise
make the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site facilities
available for use by the public for performances, educational activities, meetings, or
other uses that may be developed for the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East
Sioux Falls Historic Site by the Manager.

Subject to availability, the City shail have the right to use the Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site rent-free for meetings, seminars,
training classes, or other noncommercial uses, provided that the City shall promptly
reimburse Manager for deposit into the operating account for any out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by Manager in connection with such use. Such noncommercial
use of the facility by the City shali (i) not compete with or conflict with the dates
previously booked by Manager for paying events; and (i) be booked in advance
upon reasonable notice to Manager. Upon request of the City, the Manager shall
provide to the City a list of available dates for City use of the Arboretum. To the
extent that Manager has an opportunity to book a revenue-producing event on a
date that is otherwise reserved for use by the City, Manager may propose
alternative dates for the City’s event, and the City shall use best efforts to
reschedule its event to allow Manager to book the revenue-producing event,

Rental Proceeds. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 16 below, ail
proceeds from the renting of Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls
Historic Site facilities set forth in this section shall be collected by Manager and be
the property of the Manager during the time the Manager manages the Mary Jo
Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site.

Concession Revenue. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section Sixteen below,
the Manager shall have the exclusive right, if it chooses to exercise such right, to
operate and conduct a concession business at the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and
East Sioux Falls Historic Site through manual service and other methods for the
sale of commodities, including foods, beverages, vending machines, novelties,
promotional items, souvenirs, and other items.

Advertising Revenue. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section Sixteen below
and after obtaining the Director's approval as to content, all advertising revenue
collected shall be the property of the Manager during the time the Manager
manages the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site.

Arrowhead House. The City supports the Manager use of the Arrowhead House
located on adjacent property in Arrowhead Park. Manager will work with the
Contract Manager for dates which are mutually agreed upon.
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10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

The Manager shail have the exclusive right (not the obligation) to operate or
subcontract food services and other revenue opportunities.

The City shall not authorize or permit any other person or entity and shall not on its
own behalf sell, or offer for sale, at the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux
Falls Historic Site any of the commodities for which the Manager has concession
rights. This section is not applicable to separate City-sponsored catering events
that may occur at the site.

The Manager may on terms agreeable to it permit sublessees of the Mary Jo
Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site to operate concessions.

Remittance of Tax Due. The Manager, unless it has subcontracted with other
agencies to do so, shall collect, account for, and remit promptly to the proper
governmental authority all applicable excise, sales, and use taxes or similar
governmental charges collected at the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux
Falls Historic Site directly from the patrons or guests, or as a part of the sales price
of any goods, services, or displays such as admission, gross receipts, or similar or
equivalent taxes.

Accounting System. Manager shall establish, implement, and supetvise the
accounting, inventory, and cost control systems necessary to carry out the services
to be provided by the Manager as set forth in Exhibit A. Manager shall maintain
adequate control over the records of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East
Sioux Falls Historic Site and the acquisition and disposition of all personal property
and all fixed assets used in the operation of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and
East Sioux Falls Historic Site. (See Exhibit A.) '

Advertising and Promotion. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein,
Manager shall at its sole cost and expense pay the administrative and general
expenses and the cost of Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic
Site advertising, business promotions, and public relations out of the operating
account.

Utilities. Except for utilities that have been deemed to be the responsibility of the
Manager, the City shall pay all utility charges assessed to the Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site, including fire alarms, security alarms,
and any associated lines to operate such security/fire systems, electricity, water,
and sewer.

Telephone(s), Internet, point of sales, any additional telephone line(s) that are
needed which have not been provided by the City, cable expenses, if any, shall be
the responsibility of the Manager as set forth in Exhibit A.

Operating Account(s}. The Manager shall create and maintain one or more
separate commercial bank accounts (the “Operating Accounts”) using Manager's
tax identification number in the City of Sioux Falls, which shall be for the exclusive
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use of all receipts and disbursements related to this Agreement. Subject to the
terms of this Agreement, all revenues and monies received by the Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site shall be deposited by Manager into
the Operating Accounts as soon as practicable upon receipt. The City may at any
time obtain information and records from the bank concerning such accounts and
inspect the same. The parties specifically agree that Manager shall have authority
to sign checks and make withdrawals from such accounts, subject to the limitations
set forth in this Agreement, without needing to obtain the co-signature of a City
employee or representative. Notwithstanding the above, City shall have all rights to
the Operating Accounts upon expiration or termination of this Agreement.

The City acknowledges that the Manager may maintain other bank accounts in
addition to the Operating Accounts; provided, however, that the Manager may not
commingle with such accounts or the funds therein any receipts or disbursements
fo be maintained in the Operating Accounts as set forth above.

16. Endowment and Trust Funds. Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement,
the Manager will own or have an interest in one or more accounts: (a) for
endowment funds, trust funds, unitrust funds, or other split-interest agreements or
similar accounts that have been restricted or limited in use by the donor; or (b) that
have been established by the Manager solely to maintain funds donated to the
Manager. Such accounts may be used by the Manager, if so elected by the
Manager, for operational costs and expenses of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum
and East Sioux Falls Historic Site and/or the Manager. The Manager shall provide
an accounting of such accounts in its financial reports and audit statements. In the
event that this Agreement is terminated, all such accounts and funds therein will be
and remain the property of and be administered by the Manager, except if and to
the extent such accounts contain donations specifically designated for
improvements on the physical site of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East
Sioux Falls Historic Site or donations which, by the terms of the applicable donor
agreement, are to become the property of the City upon termination of this
Agreement, in which case such designated funds will become the property of the
City.

Section Tweive
Inventory

The Manager shall provide the City, at the end of each calendar year, with an annual
inventory of Manager's assets valued in excess of $2,500 per item including, but not
limited to, all furniture, fixtures, office equipment, supplies, and donated items at the
Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site, and deliver a written
report of the foregoing to the City. The City may review and audit any other inventory for
reasonableness. Manager shall document ali major damage to, or loss of, such
inventory during the term of this Agreement as soon as such damage or loss is
discovered by Manager, and Manager shall promptly notify City of any such damage or
loss.
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Section Thirteen
Budget

1. Budget. The Manager shall each year submit to the City an annual budget no later
than October 31 for the coming calendar year which shall be January through
December of each year. The annual budget shall include projected gross revenue
and expenses for the next calendar year.

2. Supplemental Appropriation. If extraordinary events occur during any operating
year that could not reasonably be contemplated at the time of the corresponding
annual budget was prepared, the Manager may submit a request for a
supplemental appropriation for approval by the City.

3. Schedule of Capital Improvements. The Manager may annually, at the time of
submission of the annual budget to the City, provide to the City a schedule of
proposed capital improvements to be made at the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and
East Sioux Falls Historic Site, for the purpose of allowing the City to consider such
projects and to prepare and update a long-range Capital Improvement Program.

4. Responsibility for Capital Improvements and Capital Equipment, While nothing
shall preclude Manager from partaking in fund-raising for capital improvements and
capital equipment, the City will have the sole discretion to determine whether and to
what level to fund Capital improvements at the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and
East Sioux Falls Historic Site; provided, however, the City shall be under no
obligation to make any capital improvement proposed by the Manager, and
provided further, pursuant to Section Ten, subparagraph 1, of this Agreement, that
the Manager shall have no liability for any claims, costs, or damages arising out of
a failure by the City to make any capital improvements which were determined to
be necessary for the safety, health, and welfare of the people; and provided further,
that the Manager shall be solely responsible for all Capital Equipment expenditures
in accordance with the terms set forth in Section Sixteen of this Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Manager shall have the right (not the obligation)
upon notice to the City and with the City’s consent, to make capital expenditures at
the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site for emergency
repairs in accordance with the procedure for declaration of an emergency under
Section 5.07 of the City’'s Home Rule Chatter.

5. Debt. No City real property assets shall be encumbered by the Manager without
City consent or approval.

6. Liens. Manager and the City shall use their best efforts to prevent any liens from
being filed against the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic
Site which arise from any maintenance, repairs, alterations, improvements,
additions, or replacements in or to the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux
Falls Historic Site. Manager shall act for itself and the City in this regard unless the
City directs otherwise, and if any liens are filed as a result of the Manager's actions,
Manager shall prevent any liens from becoming delinquent. The cost thereof, if the
lien was not occasioned by the fault of either party, shall be treated the same as the
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cost of the matter to which it relates. If the lien arises as a result of the fault of one
party, then the party at fault shall bear the ouf-of-pocket cost of obtaining the lien
release.

Section Fourteen
Operational Plan

The Manager will prepare and maintain an operational plan for the Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site activities by October 31 each year. The
operational plan shall establish operational policies and procedures for services offered
including, but not limited to, public use, fee collection, volunteer training programs,
facility usage requirements, sponsorship/naming rights policies, permit requirements,
etc. Implementation of the plan shall be upon concurrence of the Director.

Section Fifteen
Fees

All fee schedules of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site
shall be approved by the Parks and Recreation Board or by any other method
established by the City Council whether through ordinance or resolution.

Section Sixteen
Ownership of Assets/Repairs

During the term of this Agreement, the Manager shall retain ownership of and repair and
replace as necessary all capital equipment, including supplies, rental equipment,
televisions, computers, printers, software, sound equipment, office equipment, and any
other property the Manager is required to supply to support the delivery of services to
be provided by the Manager under Exhibit A. The City shall be the exclusive owner of all
other property at the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site. No
capital equipment or gifts to be gifted to the City shall be purchased or acquired by
Manager without consent and approval of the Director. Any assets gifted to the City for
use at or in connection with the Arboretum shall remain the property of the City but may
be used or managed by the Manager to the extent necessary or appropriate in filling the
Manager's responsibilities as set forth in Exhibit A.

Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, the City shall own all capital
equipment previously owned by Manager and used in connection with the operation of
the Arboretum or the performance of the Manager's services as set forth in Exhibit A
and any and all funds in the Operating Accounts, inclusive of rental, concession, and
advertising revenues, if any. The Manager shail not take for its own purposes customer
lists. The City will further retain exclusive ownership of all intangible property including,
but not limited to, websites, domain names, Facebook pages, suppliers’ lists, and
customer lists. The ownership of data and software utilized by the Manager in providing
services under this Agreement will remain with the City.
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Section Seventeen
Expiration, Termination, Remedies, and Exculpation

1. Grounds for Termination by the City. The City may terminate this Agreement by
notice to Manager if any one or more of the following events occur:

a. |f Manager applies for or consents to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or
liquidator of alt or a substantial part of its assets or makes a general
assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or files a voluntary petition in
bankruptcy or a petition seeking reorganization, composition, arrangement with
creditors, liquidation, or similar relief under any present or future statute, law,
or regulation, or files an answer admitting the material allegations of a petition
filed against it in any proceeding under the bankruptcy code, or is adjudicated
bankrupt or insolvent.

b. If any petition or complaint is filed without the application, approval, or consent
of the City seeking reorganization, composition, arrangement with creditors,
liquidation, or similar relief under any present or future statute, law, or
regulation with respect to Manager seeking appointment of a receiver, trustee,
or liquidator thereof of all or a substantial part of such party’s assets, and such
petition of complaint is pending and not withdrawn or dismissed for an
aggregate of ninety (90) days (excluding any days during which such petition
or complaint shall be stayed), whether or not consecutive.

¢. If Manager breaches or fails to perform any term, covenant, or condition
contained in this Agreement and fails to cure the alleged breach within
thirty (30) days following written notice specifying the alleged default and the
action required to cure the default.

2. Grounds for Termination by the Manager. The Manager may terminate this
Agreement by notice to the City if the City breaches or fails to perform any term,
covenant, or condition contained in this Agreement and fails to cure the alleged
breach within thirty (30) days following written notice specifying the alleged default
and the action required to cure the default.

3. Extension of Cure Period. In the event a default, other than a default in the
payment of money, is not reasonably susceptible to being cured within the
thirty- (30-) day period, the defaulting party will not be considered in default if,
within the allowed thirty- (30-) day period, the defaulting party will have commenced
with due diligence to cure the noticed default and thereafter completes as soon as
practicably possible the cure of the noticed default.

4. Accounting Upon Termination or Expiration. If this Agreement expires or is
terminated as provided in this section, Manager shall prepare or cause to be
prepared financial statements in accordance with the applicable provisions of
Section Eighteen for the period between the end of the last preceding accounting
period and the termination date, and Manager shall account to the City as of the
date of termination for all amounts due and payable specified in such financial
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statements (such accounting shall be subject to post-termination adjustment to
correct any errors in such statements; the obligation to make any such adjustment
shall survive the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement). In addition, as -
of the date of any such termination, Manager shall release, transfer, or remit to the
City all books, records, ficenses, and property of the City held or controlled by
Manager other than materials containing personnel records and shall take ali other
necessary measures to effectuate the orderly and prompt termination of the
relationship contemplated by this Agreement.

5. Remedies. With or without terminating this Agreement, upon the occurrence of a
default and a failure to cure within the cure period, if any, the party not in default will
be entitled to all remedies available under applicable law. All remedies will be
cumulative and nonexclusive of any other remedy.

6. Officials Not Liable. No official, director, officer, agent, or employee of the City
shall be charged personally or held contractually liable by or to the Manager under
any term or provision of this Agreement or because of any breach thereof or
because of its or their execution, approval, or attempted execution of this
Agreement. No Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site
trustee, advisory board member, director, or employee of the Manager shall be
charged personally or held contractually liable by or to the City under any term or
provision of this Agreement or because of any breach thereof or because of its or
their execution, approval, or attempted execution of this Agreement.

7. Waiver of Breach. The waiver by the City or Manager of any breach of any term,
covenant, or condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such
term, covenant, or condition, or subsequent breach of the same or any other term,
covenant, or condition herein contained. Any failure on the part of the City or
Manager to require or exact full and complete compliance with any of the
covenants, conditions, or agreements of this Agreement shall not be construed as
in any manner changing the terms hereof or to prevent the City or Manager from
enforcing the full provisions hereof, nor shall the terms of this Agreement be
changed or altered in any manner whatsoever other than by written agreement of
the City and the Manager.

8. Effects of Termination or Expiration. In the event this Agreement expires or is
terminated:

a. Payment of Operating Expenses. All operating expenses incurred or
committed prior to the date of expiration or termination will be paid using funds
on deposit in the operating accounts described in Section Eleven above; and

b. Assignment of Contracts. Without any further action on the part of Manager
or the City, Manager will assign and the City will, or will cause another
management company retained by it, to accept the assignment of Manager's
rights, and assume and perform all of Manager’s obligations, arising after the
date of expiration or termination of this Agreement under any rental
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agreements, booking commitments, advertising agreements, concession
agreements, and other contracts relating fo the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum
and East Sioux Falls Histeric Site which have been executed by Manager,
except (i) to the extent any agreement, commitment, or contract was executed
by Manager in violation of any of the restrictions applicable to Manager’s right
to execute agreements, commitments, or contracts contained in this
Agreement; and (ii) for any contracts, agreements, or commitment to which the
consent of the other party (to the contract, agreement, or commitment) is
required for the assignment and assumption unless the required consent is
obtained (in the case of any required consent, Manager will use commercially
reasonable efforts to obtain the required consents and the City will cooperate
in any reasonable manner with Manager to obtain require consents).

9.  Surrender of the Premises and Other Assets. Upon termination or expiration of
this Agreement and in accordance with Section Two above, Manager will provide
the City with all passwords, security information, and authorizations necessary for
the City or the successor management company to access, assign, maintain and
operate all websites, Facebook pages, intellectual property rights, the operating
account, and vendor and supplier services.

Section Eighteen
Financial Reports

1. Financial Records and Agreements. Manager shall keep complete and adequate
books and records reflecting the results of the operations of the Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Manager shall at ali times keep and maintain at the Mary Jo
Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site or its regular place of
business all records, books of account, and other records relating to or reflecting
the operations of Manager affecting the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux
Falis Historic Site, including such records as may be reasonably required by the
City to be maintained by the Manager and any information required to be
maintained pursuant to any provisions of this Agreement. Upon request and subject
to any restrictions imposed by applicable law, the Manager shall furnish to City
copies of all agreements and amendments thereto executed by the Manager. In the
event a request for an agreement is made by a third party, the City agrees to notify
the Manager of such request and the Manager shall timely set forth any legal
objection, if any, whether such agreement may be turned over. The City Attorney’s
Office shall be the record keeper of all such agreements.

2. No Removal. Except as otherwise provided herein, none of such books and
records, including, without limitation, books of account, and front office records,
shall be removed from the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls
Historic Site or its regular place of business without the City’s prior written approval.
Upon any termination of this Agreement, all such books and records shall be the
property of the City and shall be maintained by the City, provided that the Manager
shall have the continuing right to review or copy all such books and records.
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3. Additional Reports. Manager shall, upon the request of the City, prepare for the
City or assist the City in the preparation of such additional financial reports with
respect to the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falis Historic Site as
may be reasonably required in the preparation of the annual Mary Jo Wegner
Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site financial report.

4. City Inspection. Manager, upon reasonable notice by the City to Manager, shall
permit the City, acting through its employees and/or representatives, to make
inspections, audits, examination, or abstracts of ail records and books of account,
including such records as may be reasonably required by the City to be maintained
by Manager and information required to be maintained pursuant to any provision of
this Agreement. Any such inspection or audit shall be conducted during the
reasonable business hours of Manager, and Manager shall make all of the
aforesaid records, books of account, and other documentation available within
seven days of the written request by the City.

5. Discrepancies. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this
Agreement, the City may terminate this Agreement if any inspection or audit by the
City or its agents discloses (i) an intentional material discrepancy on the part of
Manager; or (i) an intentional material discrepancy made by a person other than
those set forth in (i) above about which Manager had knowledge, did not disclose in
writing to the City, and did not take such corrective action as Manager should deem
reasonably necessary to avoid any further discrepancy. if any inspection or audit
discloses an intentional material discrepancy of Manager, the City shall inform
Manager and Manager shali (i) make such monetary adjustments including
payment to the City as may be required because of such discrepancy; and (i) take
such actions as Manager deems reasonably necessary to avoid any further
intentional discrepancy.

6. Fees. Ifit is necessary that the City retain counsel to collect any sums ultimately
determined to be owing to it from Manager arising from a breach of this Agreement,
Manager will pay to the City the sums reasonably expended by the City, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees.

7. Obligations Survive Termination. The obligations of Manager under this section
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Section Nineteen
Voluntarily Enter into Agreement

The parties acknowledge that they are entering into this Agreement freely and
voluntarily, that they have the opportunity to be represented and advised by counsel in
the negotiations resulting in this Agreement, that they have ascertained and weighed all
the facts and circumstances likely to influence their judgment, that they have given due
consideration to the provisions contained herein, and that they thoroughly understand
and consent to all provisions herein.
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Section Twenty
Assighment

This Agreement and the rights and obligations hereunder shali not be assigned or
transferred by either party without the prior express written consent of the other. Subject
to that restriction, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto and their respective successors, assigns, and legal representatives.

This Agreement is intended solely for the benefit of the City and the Manager and shall
not be enforceable by or create any claim or right of action in favor of any other party.

Section Twenty-One
Notices

All notices, demands, and other communications required or permitted under the
provisions of this Agreement (“notice”) shall, unless otherwise specified, be in writing,
sent by hand delivery, or by certified first-class mail, postage prepaid, with return receipt
required, to the following addresses:

As to the City:
City of Sioux Fails, South Dakota
Office of the Mayor
224 West Ninth Street
P.O. Box 7402
Sioux Falls, SD 57117-7402
Phone: 605-367-8800
Fax: 367-8490

As to the Manager:
Wegner Arboretum Society
1900 South Perry Place
Sioux Falls, SD 57103
Attn: Executive Director
Phone: 605-367-4414

Or to such other address in the United States as the party to whom the notice is sent
shall have designated in writing in accordance with the provisions of this section. Any
such notice sent by mail shall be deemed effective when received. Any party to this
Agreement may change its address by giving the other party written notice of its new
address as herein provided.

Section Twenty-Two
No Waiver

if any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall be determined to be invalid,

illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall
not be in any way impaired. :
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The failure of either party to insist upon a strict performance of any of the terms or
provisions of the Agreement, or to exercise any option, right, or remedy herein
contained, shall not be construed as a waiver or as a relinquishment for the future of
such terms, provision, option, right, or remedy, but the same shall continue and remain
in full force and effect. No waiver by either party of any term or provision hereof shall be
deemed to have been made unless expressed in writing and signed by such party.

Section Twenty-Three
Applicable Laws

This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted under the substantive laws of the
state of South Dakota without regard to principles of conflicts of law.

The section headings in this Agreement are intended solely for the parties' convenience
and shall not affect the interpretation or construction of any portion or provision of this
Agreement.

Section Twenty-Four
Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which will be
deemed an original copy of this Agreement, and all of which, when taken together, will
be deemed to constitute one and the same Agreement.

Section Twenty-Five
Entire Agreement

This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the City and
the Manager with respect to the subjects described herein and supersedes all prior
negotiation, representations, or agreements, oral or written. This Agreement may be
amended or modified only in writing signed by the party to be bound by such
amendment or modification of this Agreement. The parties waive their rights to amend
or modify this Agreement in any other manner.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year
first above written.

MAYOR WEGNER ARBORETUM SOCIETY
ATTEST: FEDERAL TAX ID NO.
City Clerk
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Exhibit A

City responsibilities:

1.

o

N o

&

10.
11.

12.
13.

Provide grounds maintenance responsibilities including, but not limited to, mowing,
weed control, trimming, irrigation repair, landscape maintenance, free trimming,
sidewalk and trail maintenance, repair of roads and roadways owned by the City,
parking lot maintenance, small structure maintenance and repair, etc.

Provide building maintenance and repairs for the outside and inside of all buildings.

Provide, repair, and maintain all signage, interpretive exhibits, and other
nonsfructural improvements or fixtures.

Provide janitorial services for public restrooms a minimum of once daily.

Provide periodic janitorial services for the Educational Center, such as extensive
floor cleaning, window washing, etc.

Provide janitorial equipment and supplies for the Educational Center.
Provide paper products for restrooms.
Provide snow removal services for the parking lot and walkways.

Be responsible for maintenance and payment of utilities in accordance with
Section Eleven, subparagraph 13, of this Agreement.

Provide garbage service.

The City’s Purchasing Office shall procure/contract all capital expenditures that are
funded in whole or in part with funds provided by the City.

Provide and maintain phone lines and Internet service to the Educational Center.

Annually take inventory of Society’s trees and support tree planting process.

Society responsibilities:

1.
2.

Set hours of operation at the Educational Center with concurrence of the City.

Employ, supervise, and direct employees for the successful delivery of visitor
services at the Arboretum and Educational Center and which is consistent with the
provisions of this Agreement.

Schedule year-round activities at the Arboretum and Educational Center including,
but not limited to, group outings, picnics, site tours, education classes, weddings,
receptions, facility rentals, etc. No activities shall be scheduled beyond the

shas\afalkivatkl5024.docx 22



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

termination date of this Agreement unless it is in accordance of Section One,
subparagraph 8, of this Agreement.

Establish fees for services offered as approved by the City.

Provide light duty janitorial services for the Educational Center, including cleanup
after events, servicing public restrooms with paper products, sweeping floors,
dusting furniture, etc.

Provide office equipment, supplies, and uniforms as necessary for daily staff
functions. )

Recruit, train, and manage volunteers.
Keep records regarding usage of the Arboretum and Educational Genter.

Coordinate scheduled events with City staff responsible for maintenance. Provide
for event setup, takedown, and event management.

Provide Director prior notice of every meeting of the board of directors of the
Manager and provide the Director, upon request, with copies of all minutes of such
meetings.

Rent, lease, or purchase all furniture, fixtures, and equipment (FF&E), along with
any replacement FF&E, to support the delivery of services to be provided by the
Manager in this Exhibit A. Any expenditure of funds for FF&E and replacement
FE&E will be funded from the operating accounts and will be an expense of the
Manager.

Develop an annual marketing plan and engage in marketing, advertising,
solicitation, and promotional activities as necessary and appropriate to develop the
potential of the Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site.

Develop, maintain, and manage websites, Facebook pages, and utilize other
current and subsequently available internet-based technologies to market,
promote, and advertise the facilities.

Pursuant to Section Fourteen of this Agreement, develop and deliver to the City the
operations plan which shall include policies and guidelines for public use of the
Mary Jo Wegner Arboretum and East Sioux Falls Historic Site.

Pay, when due, all operating expenses.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS | LLP

August 15, 2024

To the Board of Directors
Great Bear Management, Inc.
Sioux Falls, South Dakota

We have audited the financial statements of Great Bear Management, Inc. for the year ended April 30, 2024,
and we will issue our report thereon dated August 15, 2024. Professicnal standards require that we provide you
with information about our responsibiliies under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as cerfain
information related to the planned scopse and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our
letter to you dated April 30, 2024. Professlonal standards also require that we communicate to you the following
information related to our audit. '

Slgnificant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies, The significant
accounting policies used by Great Bear Management, Inc, are described In Note 1 to the financlal statements, As
described In Noie 1, the Organization changed accounting policies related to finangial instruments by adopiing
FASB Accounting Standards Update No, 326, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, in year-
end 2024, Accordingly, the accounting change has been applled using the modified retrospective transition
method. We noted no ransactions entered Into by the Organlization during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guldance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements
in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financlal statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The
most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was:

Management's estimate of management fees not received and rent expense not paid to the City of
Sloux Falls under the existing agreement. We evaluated melhods, assumptions, and data used to
develop the estimate In determining that it is reasonable in relatlon to the financial statements taken as
awhole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear:

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit,

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than those

that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has

corrected all such misstatements. in addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures

- and corrected by management were material, elther indlvidually or in the aggregate, fo the financial statements
taken as a whole.

416 8 2nd Ave Sioux Falls, SD 57104 P 605-331-2550 » F 605-331-4691




Great Bear Management, Inc.
August 15, 2024
Page Two

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management Is a disagreement on a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resclved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course
of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included In the management
representation letler dated August 15, 2024.

Management Consuftations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second apinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consuitations with
other accolintants.

Other Audit Findings or lssues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Organization's auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition
to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors of Great Bear Management, Inc. and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sincerely,
Phoclo Aveoantiog Feoapy 5P

PACELINE ACCOUNTING GROUP, LLP
Certified Public Accountants



GREAT BEAR MANAGEMENT, INC
Adjusting Journal Entrles

04/30/2024
Account Descriptlon Dehlt Credit Net Income Effect
AJE 01
To recerd FY24 UBT payable
6470-0 Unrelated Business Tax 1,557.00 0,00
2035-0 Unrslated Business Tax Payable 0.00  1,657.00
Total 1,557.00  1,557.00 -1,667.00
AJE 02
To record estimated management fee and rent expense (non-cashj)
6141-0 Rent Expense 76,400.00 0.00
4025-0 Management foe 0.00 76,400,00
Total 76,400.00  76,400.00 0.00
AJE 03
To record depreclallon
6150-0 Depreciation §6,818.00 0,00
1600-¢ Accum Depreciation 000 66,815.00
Tota! 56,815.00 56,815.00 -58,815.00
AJE 04
To adjust accounis racelvable to actual
1100-0 Accounts Recelvable 1,415.59 0.00
4020-0 Sales - Events 0.00 1,415.58
Total 141559  1,415.88 1,415.59
AJE 05
To move expensa to flxed assels
1600-0 Equipment 3,037.64 0.00
6160-0 Misc Equipment 0,00 3,037.54
Total 3,087.54  3,037.54 3,037.54
e e e

AJE 06
To adjust disposed assels
1600-0 Accum Depraciation 4,038.00 Q.00
1500-0 Equlpment 0,00  4,038.00
Total 4,035.00 4,038.00 0.00
AJE 07
To ad)ust park improvements dohated lo the city
80000 Park Improvements 14,859.74 0.00
1802-0 Improvement Donalion to City 0.00 14,868.74
Total 14,669.74  14,859.74 ~14,859,74
AJE 08
To adjust wealth managemani batance to actual
1010-0 FNB - Waalth Management Fund 26,359,585 0,00
8003-0 Dlvidend Income 000 20,5633.23
6135-0 Bank charges 173.68 0.00
Total 29,532.23 20,533.28 29,359.55

GRAND TOTAL 187,656.10 187,656.10 -39,419.06
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Great Bear Management, inc.
Sioux Falls, South Dakota

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Great Bear Management, Inc. (a nonprofit

organization), which comprise the statements of financlal position as of April 30, 2024 and 2023, and the

related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related -
notes to the financial statemeants.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matetial respects, the financial
position of Great Bear Management, Inc. as of April 30, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net asseis
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America,

Baslis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, Our responsiblfities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are required to be independent of Great Bear
Management, Inc. and fo mest our other ethical responsibllities in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and malntenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are fres from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror. :

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered In the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Great Bear Management, Inc.’s ability
to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued. '

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that Includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will
always detect a materlal misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting & material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, Individualiy or In the aggregate, they would influsnce the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financiai statements.




In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

Exe.rclse professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whetner due fo
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basls, evidence regarding the amounts and disciosures in the financial
statements,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

* that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of Great Bear Management, Inc.’s Internai control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed, :

Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements. .

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Great Bear Management, inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related malters
that we identified during the audit.

Picltis Arointing Guocty 2P

" Sioux Falls, Scuth Daketa
August 15, 2024



3.
GREAT BEAR MANAGEMENT, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

APRIL 30, 2024 AND 2023

ASSETS
2024 023
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 807,509 $ 883,123
Accounts recelvable 1,047 10,456
Inventory 36,203 21,452
Prepaid expenses 7,673 76,930
Total current assets 852,432 991,861
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Equipment 498772 430,304
Park Improvement in prograss 26,791 32,764
Less accumulated depreciation {325,278) (272,501)
200,285 199,657
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,062,717 $ 1,181,618
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 10,019 $ 11,668
Accrued expenses 5,355 5,548
Gift cards payable 32,662 23,774
Customer deposits 9,688 9,613
Total current liabilities 57,724 50,603
NET ASSETS
With donor restrictions 094,993 1,141,015
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,052,717 $ 1,191618

See Notes to Financial Statements
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GREAT BEAR MANAGEMENT, INC.
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30, 2024 AND 2023

024 2023
REVENUES AND SUPPORT
Season passes $ 459,793 $ 388,338
Food and beverage 228,717 454,130
Lift 205,449 843,140
Rentails 142,495 454,418
Management fee, in kind 76,400 125,500
Lessons 40,341 107,972
Dividend Income 28,633 -
Sponsor 20,000 23,500
Events 17,876 14,215
Retail 15,396 30,073
Groups 15,200 57,653
Gift cerificates 14,968 11,006
Miscellaneous income 11,871 -
Interest Income 1,481 1,323
Lockers 1,133 1,707
Special project fund income = 40,000
Total revenues and support 1,280,583 2,553,875
EXPENSES
Program services 931,353 1,667,020
General and administration 448,685 317,526
Fundraising 30,677 18,025
Total expenses 1,411,715 2,003,471
CHANGE [N NET ASSETS FROM OCPERATIONS (131,182} 550,404
NET ASSETS RELEASED TO THE CITY (14,860} -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (146,022) 550,404
NET ASSETS, Beginning of year 1,141,015 590,611
NET ASSETS, End of year $ 094,903 $ 1,141,015

See Notes to Financial Statements



STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

ON FOLLOWING PAGES




-5-
GREAT BEAR MANAGEMENT, INC,

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2024

Program General and
Services Adminlstration  Fundraising Total

Payroll $ 247,369 % 277,842 % 24341 § 548,652
Payroll taxes 20,018 21,285 1,862 43,135
Employee beneiits 540 675 135 1,351

Total salaries and related expanses 267,927 289,772 26,338 594,038
Utllitles 135,976 16,108 - 151,084
Insurance 56,012 57,061 - 113,073
Advertising 69,056 24,465 4,339 97,880
Rent expense, in kind . 68,760 7,640 - 78,400
Uniferms and fraining 72,321 - - 72,321
Food and beverages 88,565 - - 68,565
Supplles 30,771 31,346 - 82,117
Bank charges 28,462 - - 20,462
Repairs and malntenance 25,328 - - 25,328
Professional fees 12,215 - - 12,215
Retall items purchased for resale 11,528 - - 11,528
Snomax supplies 10,886 - - 10,886
Travel 4,889 4,981 - 9,870
Dues and subscriptions 3,564 3,831 - 7,195
Donations 5,300 - - 5,300
Lease expense 4,281 - - 4,281
Licenses 1,810 - - 1,810
Unrelated business tax 1,657 - - 1,567
interest expense - - - -

Total expenses hefore depreciation 880,219 444,004 30,677 1,354,001
Depreciation 51,134 5,681 - 56,815

Total expenses $ 031,353 449,685 36,677 1,411,718

Sees Notes to Financial Statements



-6
GREAT BEAR MANAGEMENT, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2023

Program General and
Services Admlnistration Fundraising Tofal

Payroll $ 743,772 § 198,060 § 15,801 § 957,633
Payroll taxes 84,138 15,152 1,209 80,489
Employee benefits 848 811 162 1,622

Total salarles and related expenses 808,559 214,028 17,172 1,039,754
Food and beverages 162,504 - - 152,504
Insurance . 112,029 29,037 - 141,066
Rent expense, In kind 112,950 12,650 - 125,500
Utilitles 105,388 11,710 - 117,008
Advertising 77,854 26,536 1,763 106,143
Supplies 56,725 14,703 - 71,428
Bank charges . 54,849 - - 54,849
Uniforms and training 44,975 - - 44,975
Repalrs and mainienance 29,555 - - 29,555
Retall ftems purchased for resale 17,826 - - 17,828
Dues and subscriptions 10,212 2,647 - 12,858
Professional fees 11,773 - - 11,773
Donations 7,360 “ - 7,360
Travel 5,480 1,423 - 6,913
Snomax supplies 5,778 - - 5778
Lease expense 3,750 - - 3,750
Unrelated business tax 2,989 - - 2,989
Licenses 2,248 - - 2,249
Interest expense 132 - - 132

Total expenses hefore depreclation 1,622,947 312,629 18,925 1,964,501
Depreciation 44,073 4,897 - 48,970

Total expenses $ 1687,020 ¢ 317,626 % 18,825 $ 2,003,471

See Notes to Financial Statements
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GREAT BEAR MANAGEMENT, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In net assets $ {146,022)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash (Used) provided by operating activities

Depreclation 56,815
Park improvements donated {o the City 14,860
Changes In asseis and liabilities
Accounts receivable 9,408
Inventory (14,751}
Prepaid expenses 69,257
Aceounts payable {1,649}
Accrued expenses (193)
Glft cards payable 8,888
Customer deposits 75
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities (3,311)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (63,416)
Purchase of park Improvements (8,887)
Net cash used in invesiing activities {72,303)
Net (decrease) increase in Cash and Cash Equivaients {75,614)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of year 883,123
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year $ 807,506

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid $ -

See Notes to Financlal Statements

|3
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$ 550,404

48,870

(2,937)
1,168
11,903
(2,683)
1,184
(19,183)
1,800

880,606

{62,652}
{17,095)

(80,547)
510,059
373,064

$ 883,123

3 132
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GREAT BEAR MANAGEMENT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a.

Nature of Activities

Great Bear Management, Inc. {the Organization) is a nonprofit corporation under the faws of
the State of South Dakota. The Organization was organized to support and promote winter
sports, Speclal Olympics, state, county and municipat parks and other facilities devoted to
such purposes, and to provide managemsnt and operating services with respect to the
foregoing,

Basis of Presentation

The financial statemenis of the Organization have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which requires
that resources be classified for reporting purposes based oh the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions. This is accomplished by classlification of resources into two
classes of net assets: without donor restrictions and with donor restrictions. Accordingly, the
net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified as follows:

« Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary
objectives of the Organization. The Organization’s board may designate assets without
restrictions for speclfic operational purposes from time to time.

¢ Net Asseis With Donor Restrictions — Net assets with donor restrictions are resources
that are restricted by a donor for use for a particular purpose or in a patticular future
period. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, and the restriction
will expire when the resources are used In accordance with the donor's Instructions or
when the stipulated time has passed. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in
nature; the Organization must continue to use the resources In accordance with the
donor’s instructions,

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principies generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabllites and disclosure of
contingent assets and Habliiies at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporing cash flows, the Organization considers all financlal Instruments
with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash aquivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts recelvable are uncollateralized obligations owed to the Organization for group,
event, or sponsorship revenues. Management periodically reviews accounts recelvable and
estimates the unrealizable portion through an allowance for credit losses. Accordingly, ho
allowance for credit losses has been provided as no materfal write-offs are expected. As of
Aprll 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 the accounts receivable balance was $1,047, $10,456, and
$7.519, respectively.
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GREAT BEAR MANAGEMENT, INC,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f.

Inventory
Inventory is valued at cost on a first-in, first-out basis.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost or at fair market value at the date of denation.
Expenditures over $2,500 for assets purchased for improvements that significantly add to
the productive capacity or extend tha useful life of an asset are capitalized. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. When equipment Is refired or sold, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and the
resultant gain or loss is reflected in income,

Depreciation is computed using the straightline method. Estimated useful lives for
depreciation range from five to seven years. Depreciation expense totaled $58,815 and
$48,970 for the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023, respactively.

Revenue Recognition

Lift tickets, food & beverage, rentals, lessons, groups, and refail

The Organization recognizes revenue from lift tickets, food & beverage, groups, and retail at
the point in time when the sale occurs. Revenue from rentals and lessons are recognized
when the event occurs.,

Season passes

Revenue is recognized over the ski season on a straight-line basis due to a fluctuating
usage pattern. :

Private events

Revenue from private events are recognized when the event oceurs,
Sponsors

Revenue from sponsorships is recognized when the sponsoring event occurs.
Gift certificates

The Company sells gift cards. The Company does not charge fees on unused gift cards and
cards do not expire. Revenue from gift cards is recognized when the gift card is redeemed
by the customer, or the likelhood of the glift card being redeemed is remote and the
Company has no legal obligation to remit the unused balance to relevant jurisdictions as
unclaimed property. The Company estimates Its gift card breakage rate based on historical
redemption experience and recognized the projected breakage at April 30th, which Is the
time the Company considers onhe third redemption remote. At April 30, 2024 and 2023,
contract liability (gift cards payable) in regard to unearned gift certificates was $32,662 and
$23,774, respectively.

In-Kind management fee and special projact fund

Revenus from in-kind management fee and special project fund Is recognized in the period
received. See note 3 and nofe 4.
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GREAT BEAR MANAGEMENT, ING.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Ali costs are directly allocated to program, management and general or fundraising with the
exception of staff salaries and benefits, cccupancy and office, advertlsing, depreciation,
insurance, and miscellaneous, Management's estimated allocation of these cosis is based
on estimates of time and effort,

Income Taxes

The Organization is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes, except for
any unrelated business income, under Section 501(c)(4) of the Interhal Revehue Code and
classified by the Internal Revenue Service as other than a private foundation. During the
fiscal years April 30, 2024 and 2023, the Organlzaticn Incurred unrelated business income of
$20,000 and $23,500, respectively, related to spensorship/advertising Income, Income taxes
paid amounted to $1,557 and $2,988 for fiscal years April 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively,

The Organization believes it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken affecting its
annuai filing requirements, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are
material to the fihancial statements. The Organlzation would recognize future accrued
interest and penalfles related to unrecognized tax henefits and liabiities in Income tax
expense if such Interest and penalties are incurred.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains cash balances at one financial institution located in South
Dakota, These balances, at times, excead Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limits of
$250,000, At Aprif 30, 2024 and 2023 the Qrganizations uninsured cash balances totaled $0
and $671,788, respectively. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such
accounts and belleves It Is not exposed to any significant credlt risk on cash.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred, Advertising expense for the
years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 was $87,860 and $106,143, respeclively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As of April 30, 2024, none of the assels and liabllities were required to be reported at fair
value on a recurring basis. The carrying values of cash and cash squivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximated thelr values due to the
short-term nature of these financlal Instruments. There were no changes in methods or
assumplions during the year ended Al 30, 2023,

Reclassifications

Certain Aprll 30, 2023 ltems may have been reclassified to conform with the April 30, 2024
financial statement presentation,

Date of Management’s Review

Subsequent events were evaluated through August 15, 2024, which is the date that the
financlal statements were available to be Issued.
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GREAT BEAR MANAGEMENT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting Standards Adopted

As of May 1, 2023 the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments

- Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurament of Credit Losses on Financial Insfruments, as

amended, which modifies the measurement of expected credit losses on certain financial

instruments. The adoption of this standard did not have a material Impact on the

g)rganizatign‘s financial statements but did change how the allowance for credit losses is
etermined.

2. NET ASSET DESIGNATIONS AND RESTRIGTIONS

The Organization has an agreement with the City of Sioux Falls to operate and manage a year-
round recreational facility for public use. Under this agreement, the Organization is required to
maintain a separate bank account for the revenue and expenses related solely to this enterprise.

Upon termination of the management agreement with the City of Sioux Falls, the Organization
must relinquish all property at the recreational park including cash, inventory, rental equipment,
and office supplies that were purchased for the purpose of operating and managing the facility.

The Organization has incurred approximately $2,550,600 in park improvements since inception that
are not shown on these financlal statements as title has reverted to the City of Sioux Falls at the
fime the expenditure was complete. The Organization has incurred approximately $27,000 in park
improvements for an ongoing ski terrain project, that as of April 30, 2024 has not been completed
but will revert to the city upon full completion.

As all assets listed on the statement of financial position as of Aprit 30, 2024 and 2023 are used
for, or are the result of the management and cperations of the recreatlonal facllity managed on
behalf of the City of Sioux Falls, all assets are considered with donor restricted,

3. MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

The management agreement with the City of Sioux Falis dated April 30, 2023, to operate the
facility, commenced on May 1, 2023 and will expired on April 30, 2028, uniess earlier terminated
under the terms of the agreement or subsequently extended. Under this agreement, the
Organization does not recelve any management fees or compensation, but also does not pay rent
for the use of the land, buildings and other permanent fixtures located at the recreational facility
and owned by the City, Management has determined that the estimated fair market value of the
managemeant feas not received and rent expense not assessed as of April 30, 2024 and 2023
would be $78,400 and $125,500, respectively. The estimated revenue has been recorded as in-
kind management fee income and the estimated expense has been recorded as In-kind rent
expense on the April 30, 2024 and 2023 statement of activities in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

4, NOTES PAYABLE
The Organization has a bank line of credit available, expiring June 2024. The stated amount
available is $150,000, with a variable interest rate, which was 8.26% at April 30, 2024, There was
no outstanding line of credit batance at April 30, 2024 and 2023.

Interest expense was $0 and $85 for 2024 and 2023, respectively.



2.
GREAT BEAR MANAGEMENT, INC,

NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
5. SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND

The Organization received contributions from the Sioux Falls Area Community Foundation. The
Organizatlon recelved approximately $0 and $40,000 in special projects funds for the years ended
April 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Organization has expended that money for the infended
purpose.

The Organization Is also the beneficiary of the Angus Anson Family Great Bear Endowment held
by the Sioux Falls Area Community Foundation. Contributions received for both the special
projects fund and Angus Anson fund are recorded when received. The total fund balances are

designated funds of the Sloux Falls Area Community Foundation and are not reflected in Great
Bear Management's financlal statements,

6.  OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leased lockers under a non-cancelable lease as of July 10, 2018. The minimum
non-cancelable lease commitment pursuant to this lease is as follows;

Year Ended April 30,
2024

3,750
Total Commitment $ 3,760

7. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financlal assels avallable for general expenditure, including restricted amounts that are avallable
for expenditures within one year of April 30, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Financial Assets:

2024 2023
Cash $ 778,150 % - 8B3,123
Accounts recelvable 1,047 10,456
$ 779187 § 893,579

The Organization has a liquidity management pollcy to structure its financial assets to be available
for its general expenditures, liabilities, and as other obligations come due. To manage

unanticipated liquidity needs, the Crganization has a committed line of credit of $150,000 which it
could draw upon.
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Ist Reading:
2nd Reading:
Date Adopted:
Date Published:
Effective Date:

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SIOUX FALLS, SD, AMENDING THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY BY REVISING CHAPTER 95: PARKS AND RECREATION
SUBCHAPTER FEES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF SIOUX FALLS, SD:

Section 1. That Section 95.070 of the Code of Ordinances of Sioux Falls, SD, is hereby amended
to read:

§ 95.070 DEFINITIONS.

For the purposes of this subchapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly
indicates or requires a different meaning,

ADULT. A person between the ages 18 and 64.

ANNUAL AQUATIC SEASON. Shall be effective from date of purchase for one 12-month period, and
include the Midco Aquatic Center, outdoor aquatic centers, and outdoor swimming pools.

ANNUAL RECREATION CENTER PASS. Shall be effective from the date of purchase for one 12-
month period and includes recreation centers,

CHILD. A person between the ages three and 17.

COUPLE. Two individuals, at least one of whom is over the age of 18, who reside in the same household,

FALL, WINTER, AND SPRING AQUATIC SEASON. All operational days at the Midco Aquatic Center
excluding the summer aquatic season.

FEALL, WINTER, AND SPRING REDUCED-INCOME. Families/individuals who are residents of Sioux
Falls and who actively receive reduced or free school lunches, who actively receive Medicaid benefits,
receive South Dakota Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), who presently have foster
children residing in the household, or have an active Dakota EBT card—food stamp card.

FAMILY. Immediate family members living in the household, including step and foster children. It does
not mean extended family such as grandparents, aunts, uncles, and children older than 18 years of age.

FREE PASS/FREE SEASON PASS. Families/individuals who are residents of Sioux Falls and have an
active Dakota EBT card—food stamp card or receive South Dakota Temporary Assistance for Needy
Families (TANF).




10/24/2024 SAAS\Clerk\ORD\2024\0rd0058.doex

INDOOR AQUATIC FACILITY. An ADA accessible facilify located within a recreation center that may
inciude, but is not limited to, amenities such as a leisure pool, zero-depth beach entry, play features, water
slides, lap lanes, and lazy river,

INFANT. A person between the ages zero to less than three years old.

JACOBSON PLAZA ICE RIBBON. An ouidoor refrigerated sheet of ice that may be used for ice skating
and other recreational purposes.

MIDCO® AQUATIC CENTER. An indoor, ADA accessible facility that may include, but is not limited
to, amenities such as leisure pool, zero-depth beach entry, play features, water slides, lap lanes, current
channel, and diving boards.

MONTHLY RECREATION CENTER PASS. Shall be effective from the date of purchase in any
calendar month to the corresponding day of the next month if such day exists, or if not, to the last day of
the next month.

OUTDOOR AQUATIC CENTER. An ADA accessible facility that may include, but is not limited to,
amenities such as leisure pool, zero-depth beach entry, play features, water slides, lap lanes, and lazy
river. (Drake Springs, Laurel Oak, and Terrace Park.)

OUTDOOR SPRAY PARK. A standalone structure not part of the Mideo Aquatic Center from which
water is sprayed or released but does not accumulate.

OUTDOOR SWIMMING POOL, A pool of water with depths from two to 12 feet of water, which may
include lap lanes and diving bhoards, (Frank Olson and Kuehn.)

OUTDOOR WADING POOL. A pool of water with a separate entrance that may include 36 inches or less
of water depth and play features. (McKennan, Frank Qlson, and Kuehn,)

RECREATION CENTER. An indoor, ADA accessible facility that may include, but is not limited to,
amenities such as an indoor aquatic facility, gymnasium, multi-purpose space, walking/running track, and
fitness space. A recreation center shall not include the Midco Aquatic Center.

REDUCED-INCOME. Faniilies/individuals who ave residents of Sioux Falls and actively receive
reduced or free school Iunches, or who actively receive Medicaid benefits, receive South Dakota
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), who presently have foster children residing in the
household, or have an active Dakota EBT card—food stamp card.

RESIDENT OF SIOUX FALLS. Any person whose place of residence is within the city limits of Sioux
Fails,

SENIOR CITIZEN. A person age 65 and older.

SPLASH PASS. A transferrable pass to be redeemed only toward the cost of admission at the Midco
Aquatic Center, outdoor swimming pools and outdoor aquatic centers.

SUMMER AQUATIC SEASON, The season of operation generally between the months of May through
August as established annually by Sioux Falls Parks and Recreation at the Midco Aquatic Center, indoor
aquatic facilities, outdoor aguatic centers, and outdoor swimming pools.

VETERAN, An individual who has or is currently serving in the United States military and must provide
documentation of service such as a Military 1ID.
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Section 2. That Section 95,071 of the Code of Ordinances of Sioux Falls, SD, is hereby amended to read.

§ 95.071 RECREATION ACTIVITY AND FACILITY FEES.

(b) Ice Rink Fees
Qutdoor rinks (excluding the
Jacobson Plaza Ice Ribbon)
Ice skate rental adult $3
Ice skate rental children $1
Ice skate rental senior citizen $2
Jacobson Plaza Ice Ribbon
Skate rental (all ages) $3
Skate time reservation $5
Date adopted:
Paul TenHaken, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jermery J. Washington, City Clerk
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1st Reading:
2nd Reading:
Date Adopted:
Date Pubiished:
Effective Date:

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SIOUX FALLS, SD, AMENDING THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY BY REVISING CHAPTER 95: PARKS AND RECREATION
SUBCHAPTER FEES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF SIOUX FALLS, SD:

Section 1. That Section 95.070 of the Code of Ordinances of Sioux Falls, SD, is hereby amended
to read:

§ 95.070 DEFINITIONS,

For the purposes of this subchapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly
indicates or requires a different meaning,

ADULT. A person between the ages 18 and 64.

ANNUAL AQUATIC SEASON, Shall be effective from date of purchase for one 12-month period, and
include the Mideo Aquatic Center, outdoor aquatic centers, and outdoor swimming pools.

ANNUAL RECREATION CENTER PASS. Shall be effective from the date of purchase for one 12-
month period and includes recreation centers,

CHILD. A person between the ages three and 17.
COUPLE. Two individuals, at least one of whom is over the age of 18, who reside in the same household.

FALL, WINTER, AND SPRING AQUATIC SEASON. All operational days at the Midco Aquatic Center
excluding the summer aquatic season.

FALL, WINTER, AND SPRING REDUCED-INCOME. Fanilies/individuals who are residents of Sioux
Falls and who actively receive reduced or free school lunches, who actively receive Medicaid benefits,
receive South Dakota Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), who presently have foster
children residing in the household, or have an active Dakota EBT card-food stamp card,

FAMILY. Immediate family members living in the housebold, including step and foster children. It does
not mean extended family such as grandparents, aunts, uncles, and children older than {8 years of age.

FREE PASS/FREE SEASON PASS. Families/individuals who are residents of Sioux Falls and have an
active Dakota EBT card-food stamp card or receive South Dakota Temporary Assistance for Needy
Families (TANF).
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INDOOR AQUATIC FACILITY. An ADA accessible facility located within a recreation center that may
include, but is not limited to, amenities such as a leisure pool, zero-depth beach entry, play features, water
slides, lap lanes, and lazy river.

INFANT, A person between the ages zero o less than three years old.

JACOBSON PIAZA TCKE RIBBON. An outdoor relviperaled sheet of ice that may be vsed for ice skating
and ofhey recreational purmoses,

MIDCO® AQUATIC CENTER. An indoor, ADA accessible facility that may include, but is not limited
to, amenities such as leisure pool, zero-depth beach entry, play features, water slides, lap lanes, current
channel, and diving boards.

MONTHLY RECREATION CENTER PASS. Shall be effective from the date of purchase in any
calendar month to the corresponding day of the next month if such day exists, or if not, to the last day of
the next month,

OUTDOOR AQUATIC CENTER. An ADA accessible facility that may include, but is not limited to,
amenities such as leisure pool, zero-depth beach entry, play features, water slides, lap lanes, and lazy
river, (Drake Springs, Laurel Oak, and Terrace Park,)

OUTDOOR SPRAY PARK. A standalone structure not part of the Midco Aquatic Center from which
water is sprayed or released but does not accumulate.

OUTDOOR SWIMMING POOL. A pool of water with depths from two to 12 feet of water, which may
include {ap lanes and diving boards. (Frank Olson and Kuehn.)

OUTDOOR WADING POOL. A pool of water with a separate entrance that may include 36 inches or less
of water depth and play features. {McKennan, Frank Olson, and Kuehn.)

RECREATION CENTER. An indoot, ADA accessible facility that may include, but is not limited to,
amenities such as an indoor aquatic facility, gymnasium, multi-purpose space, walking/running track, and
fitness space. A recreation center shall not include the Midco Aquatic Center.

REDUCED-INCOME. Families/individuals who are residents of Sioux Falls and actively receive
reduced or free school lunches, or who actively receive Medicaid benefits, receive South Dakota
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), who presently have foster children residing in the
household, or have an active Dakota EBT card—food stamp card.

RESIDENT OF SIOUX E4LLS. Any person whose place of residence is within the city limits of Sioux
Falls.

SENIOR CITIZEN. A person age 65 and older.

SPLASH PASS, A transferrable pass to be redeemed only toward the cost of admission at the Midco
Aquatic Center, outdoor swimming pools and outdoor aquatic centers,

SUMMER AQUATIC SEASON. The season of operation generally between the months of May through
August as established annually by Sioux Falls Parks and Recreation at the Midco Aquatic Center, indoor
aquatic facilities, outdoor aquatic centers, and cutdoor swimming pools.

VETERAN. An individual who has or is currently serving in the United States military and must provide
documentation of service such as a Military 1D.
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Section 2, That Section 95.071 of the Code of Ordinances of Sioux Falls, 8D, is hereby amended to read:

§ 95.071 RECREATION ACTIVITY AND FACILITY FELS,

(&) Ice Rink Fees
Outdaor rinks (exc
Jacobson Plaza lec B
Ice skate rental adult 83
Ice skate rental children $1
Ice skate rental senior citizen $2
Jacobson Plaza [ee Ribbon
Skate rental {all ages) $3
Skate finie reservation 5
Date adopted:
Paul TenHaken, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jermery J. Washington, City Clerk
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Ist Reading:
2nd Reading:
Date Adopted:
Date Published:
Effective Date:

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SIOUX FALLS, SD, AMENDING THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY BY AMENDING CHAPTER 95: PARKS AND
RECREATION, SUBSECTION (b) OF SECTION 95.029; ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF SIOUX FALLS, SD:

Section 1. That Subsection (b) of Section 95.029 of the Code of Ordinances of Sioux Falls, SD, is
hereby amended fo read:

§ 95.029 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES,

(b) No person shall consume any alcoholic beverages in Falls Park, Fawick Park, or any park
property located adjacent to and within 500" of the Big Sioux River between Falls Park Dr. south
to the Cliff Ave. bridge located between 12th St. and 14th St., except upon application meeting
the requirements of SDCL 35-4-124 and approval by the city council. The restriction contained
within this subsection shall not apply to the licensed serving of wine and malt beverages by the
Falls Park Overiook Café within the Café’s building and patio area or where alcoholic beverages
are licensed to be sold.

Date adopted:

Paul TenHaken, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jermery J. Washington, City Clerk
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Ist Reading:
2nd Reading:
Date Adopted:
Date Published:
Effective Date:

ORDINANCE NO,

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SIOUX FALLS, SD, AMENDING THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY BY AMENDING CHAPTER 95: PARKS AND
RECREATION, SUBSECTION (b) OF SECTION 95.029: ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES,

BE I'T ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF SIOUX FALLS, SD:

Section 1. That Subsection (b) of Section 95.029 of the Code of Ordinances of Sioux Falls, SD, is
hereby amended to vead:

§ 95.029 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES,

(b) No person shall consume any alcoholic beverages in Falls Park, Fawick Park, or any park
propetty located adjacent to and within 500' of the Big Sioux River between Falls Park Dr. south
to the CLiff Ave. bridge located between 12th St. and i4th St., except upon application meeting
the requirements of SDCL 35-4-124 and approval by the city council. The restriction contained
within this subsection shall not apply to the licensed serving of wine and malt beverages by the
Falls Park Overlook Café within the Café’s building and patio area or whete alcoholic heverapes
are licensed to be sold,

Date adopted:

Paul TenHaken, Mayor
ATTEST:

Fermery J. Washington, City Clerk
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JACOBSON PLAZA FOOD AND BEVERAGE SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Jacobson Plaza Food and Beverage Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and
entered into this day of , 2024, by and between the City of Sioux Falls,
South Dakota, a home rule chartered municipality, organized and existing under South Dakota
law (“City” or “Owner”), and Washington Pavilion Management, Inc., a nonprofit organization
organized under the laws of the state of South Dakota (“Food and Beverage Operator” or
CWPMI™).

RECITALS:

Al The City is the owner of Jacobson Plaza at Falls Park, located at 810 North Phillips
Avenue, Sioux Falls, SD 57104, referred to in this Agreement as “Jacobson Plaza.”

B. The Jacobson Plaza skate ribbon, Gathering Hall, and Warming House substantial
completion date is anticipated in the winter of 2024-2025.

C. Open year-round, Jacobson Plaza is a vibrant and multifaceted park designed to enrich
the recreational and social fabric of the city. Jacobson Plaza will feature several amenities
that include a state-of-the-art skate ribbon, largest inclusive playground in the region, T.
Denny Sanford Splash Pad, Pawsible Dog Park, an on-site Warming House with a Party
Room that can be arranged in multiple configurations and is appropriate for parties, small
corporate gatherings, and other private events, along with a connected Gathering Hall
with outdoor seating, Common Space area with public restrooms between the Gathering
Hall and flexible use Warming House.

D. The City wishes to activate the amenities located in Jacobson Plaza in a manner that
provides a welcoming and engaging experience allowing usets to spend time enjoying
outdoor park and recreation experiences through every season,

E. The City desires to retain management over the skate ribbon, splash pad, playground, and
other park features, along with the Warming House, including park and recreation
activities at Jacobson Plaza in a manner that optimizes the ability of the Food and
Beverage Operator to promote food and beverage services.

F. The Food and Beverage Operator is engaged in, among other things, the business of
managing and operating food, beverage (alcoholic and nonalcoholic), novelty, and
merchandise concession services and catering services at the Washington Pavilion and
Orpheum Theater.

G. The City desires to engage the Food and Beverage Operator, and the Food and Beverage
Operator desires to accept the engagement to provide all food and beverage services at
the Gathering Hall with outdoor seating and the Party Room within the Warming House
and the Flexible Use Space at Jacobson Plaza, along with Concession Sales and Catering
Sales located within Jacobson Plaza on the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement.

Agreement No. 24-0023
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H. The City and the Food and Beverage Operator intend to work collaboratively to ensure
residents and visitors alike have a positive and memorable park and recreation experience
at Jacobson Plaza.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and
agreements set forth in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

Section 1.  Definitions.

1.1 Defined Terms. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the
meanings referred to in this Section 1:

a) “Adjusted Operating Income” is defined as Operating Income (“Losses™) plus
depreciation on owned or leased Capital Equipment or Capital Improvements,

b) “Agreement” shall refer to the contract executed between the Food and
Beverage Operator and the City.

¢) “Agreement Year” refers to a fiscal year beginning July 1 and ending June 30
annually, and every July [ through June 30 for every year thereafter until the
Agreement terminates,

d)  “Alcoholic Beverage” shall refer to all alcoholic drinks, beers, and wines,
regardless of where they are provided, in what packaging or format, or to
whom they are provided (beverages containing THC shall not be sold within
Jacobson Plaza).

e) “Approved Operating Budget” means any annual Budget submitted by the
Food and Beverage Operator with respect to the operation of the Food and
Beverage Services as outlined in Section 2.1(b) approved by the City Finance
Office and Director of Parks and Recreation pursuant to Section [2.3 of this
Agreement.

) “Base Fee” as defined in Section 6.1 of this Agreement,

g) “Budget” means a projection of revenues and expenses for a specified purpose
and period of time.

h) “Capital Equipment” means all furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment
to be utilized for the operation of Food and Beverage Services at Jacobson
Plaza, either additional or replacement, having a per item original cost of
$5,000 or more and an expected useful life of more than one year.

i) “Capital Improvements” mean any additions, alterations, renovations, repairs,
and improvements to the Gathering Hall located in Jacobson Plaza with an
initial dotlar cost of not less than $5,000 per project.
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“Cash Flow Shortfall” is as defined in Section 12.1 of this Agreement,

“Catering Sales,” also referred to as “Catered Event,” refers to any
prearranged food and beverage function of multiple customers, such as
banquets, where payment for the entire function rests with one individual or
company whether on or off-site.

“City” means the City of Sioux Falls, South Dakota, a home rule-chartered
municipality organized and existing under South Dakota law,

“Common Space” refers to the area between the Warming House and
Gathering Hall, which shall be used for common hallways and public
restrooms as shown in Exhibit B.

“Concession Sales” shall refer to all sales of food and beverages sold from
permanent or portable food and beverage stands, carts, food trucks, and kiosks
to individual customers, whether on- or off-site.

“Contract Administrator” means the Director of Parks and Recreation or the
City’s official, as from time to time designated by the City, as the person with
authority to act (except in the instance other action or approval of the City—
whether by its City Council, Mayor, or others—is required) with respect to
matters pertaining to this Agreement and items used to operate the Food and
Beverage Services at Jacobson Plaza.

“Flexible Use Space” shall refer to the space used in the Warming House for
gathering and putting on skates during the period the ribbon is utilized for ice
skating, other recreational activities, and for public or private events as shown
in Exhibit B.

“Food and Beverage Operator” shall refer to the party selected by the City to
provide the Food and Beverage Services and event management,

“Food and Beverage Services” are as defined in Section 2.1b of this
Agreement.

“Food Service” shall refer to all food, beverage (alcohol and nonalcoholic),
and Merchandise sales and operation within Jacobson Plaza.

“Gathering Hall” shall refer to a full-service food and beverage area with
additional outdoor seating as shown in Exhibit B.

“Gross Revenues” shall refer to the total of all sales made by the Food and
Beverage Operator from the operation of Food and Beverage Services and
event management, along with amounts received by the Food and Beverage
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Operator from program fees, sales of sponsorships, events rentals, any
subcontractor sales, whether such amounts are evidenced by cash, check,
credit, charge account, exchange, or otherwise, including but not limited to
supplemental fees charged in connection with catering performed at the
Gathering Hall as described in Section 2.1(b)(iii), less retail sales taxes and
other direct taxes imposed upon receipts collected from the consumert,

“Holiday Hours” refers to New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Day,
President’s Day, Easter, Memorial Day, Juneteenth, 4th of July, Labor Day,
Native American Day, Veteran’s Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day,
along with the Sioux Falls School District scheduled days off.

“Jacobson Plaza” refers to the overall complex consisting of the state-of-the-
art skate ribbon, largest inclusive playground in the region, T. Denny Sanford
Splash Pad, Pawsible Dog Park, an on-site Warming House with a Party
Room, Flexible Use Space and support areas, connected by a Common Space
to a full-service Gathering Hall, and all future additions and improvements
thereto, and replacements of the amenities located on the premises which site
plan is as shown it Exhibit A which is attached hereto and made a part of this
Agreement.

“Incentive Fee” is as defined in Section 6.2 of the Agreement.

“Inventory” means consumable and nonconsutnable items to be used in the
Food and Beverage Services and related activities at Jacobson Plaza including
but not limited to produce, meats, dry stores, liquor and beverages, cooking
equipment, uniforms, linens, merchandise held for resale, and any other items
not considered ag capital equipment.

“Laws” means all federal, state, local, and municipal regulations, ordinances,
statutes, rules, and constitutional provisions.

“Leasehold Improvements™ refers to all equipment, fixtures, furnishings,
finishes, and construction materials affixed to the Gathering Hall by more than
an electrical or gas connection and utilized by the Food and Beverage
Operator to providing Food and Beverage Services and event management,

“Marketing Plan” means a plan for the cross-advertising and promotion of
Jacobson Plaza and events at Jacobson Plaza, which may include, but not be
limited to, the following elements: approved on-site marketing signage;
market research; market position; marketing objectives; marketing strategies;
targeted events; industry advertising campaigns; internal and external support
staffing requirements; social media marketing, advertising and sponsorship
opportunities at the focal and regional level; merchandising; food and
beverage plans; public relations plans; media relations plans; and policies
regarding the use of trade/barter.
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“Merchandise” shail refer to the nonexclusive sales of nonedible products
such as souvenirs, clothing, etc,, sold at Jacobson Plaza. The merchandise
should generaily be related to branding of The Falls, Jacobson Plaza, etc.

“Operating Account” is as defined in Section 12.3(f) of this Agreement.

“Operating Expenses” mean the expenses and expenditures incurred by the
Food and Beverage Operator in promoting, opetating, maintaining, and
managing the Food and Beverage Service, event management, and related
activities at Jacobson Plaza, which are required to be accounted for in the
Operating Account, all as determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Operating Expenses include but are not limited to: full-
time and part-time employee compensation and payroll expenses on a pro-rata
share based on time allocation to Food and Beverage Services at Jacobson
Plaza including agreed-upon benefit cost allocation, employee bonuses,
severance costs, employment taxes, and all employment-related costs for Food
and Beverage Operator’s employees assighed to provide direct services at
Jacobson Plaza; operating supplies, materials, and parts costs; costs of any
independent contractors; advertising, marketing, social media, group sales,
and public relations costs; commissions; janitorial and cleaning expenses; data
processing costs; dues, subscriptions, and membership costs for Food and
Beverage Operator’s employees; the Food and Beverage Operator’s costs of
procuring, administering, and maintaining the insurance policies required
pursuant to this Agreement and deductibles, except the cost of the professional
liability insurance policy; costs incurred by Food and Beverage Operator to
procure and maintain permits and licenses; professional fees; printing and
stationery costs; postage and freight costs; dues; subscriptions; banking and
credit card services fees; rental costs, including operating lease payments;
computer purchase, Internet, cable, and telephone charges,
copier/printer/facsimile equipment rental charges, software costs, website
construction, social media platform, maintenance, and hosting costs;
replacement of Smallwares; repairs and maintenance costs for equipment
when not consisting of Capital Improvements; depreciation expense on owned
or leased Capital Equipment; security expenses; safety and medical expenses;
taxes; all fees payable to Food and Beverage Operator as compensation
pursuant to Sections 6.1, 6.2, and 6.3 of this Agreement; and defense and
litigation costs and expenses under Section 2, 1(b)(xix of this Agreement; and
an independent agreed-upon procedures review as required by the Contract
Administrator of Jacobson Plaza’s financial statements as agreed to by the
City and Food and Beverage Operator. Operating Expenses do not include: (i)
expenses or expenditures in connection with Capital Improvements ot any
outlay of funds for Capital Equipment except operating fease payments; (ii)
any expenses relating to Food and Beverage Operator personnel not actively
involved in the day-to-day operations at Jacobson Plaza; (iii) the cost of
insurance premiums incurred by the City to purchase property and hazard
insurance for Jacobson Plaza, the City’s personal property located in Jacobson
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Plaza, and the City’s revenues from the operation of Jacobson Plaza due to a
casualty occurrence; (iv) utility services, which are paid for by the City.

“Operating Income (l.oss)” means, with respect to an Agreement Year, the
excess, il any, of Operating Revenues over Operating Expenses for the
Agreement Year, in the case of Operating Income, and the excess, if any, of
Operating Expenses over Operating Revenues for the Agreement Year, in the
case of an Operating Loss.

“Operating Revenues” mean the Gross Revenues of every kind or nature
derived from operating, managing, and promoting the Food and Beverage
Services and other coordinated events or activities managed by the Food and
Beverage Operator and all other ancillary revenues related to Jacobson Plaza
less cost of goods sold that are required to be accounted for in the Operating
Account, all as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Operating Revenues include but are not limited to: revenues from
Merchandise sales (net of cost of goods sold); revenues from skate/ice time
for private events held during nonpublic hours; advertising and sponsorship
revenues; equipment rentals; Food and Beverage Services (net of cost of
goods sold); all revenues from activities that are nonfood refated but are
booked by the Food and Beverage Operator; revenues from room rental at the
Gathering Hall and Warming House; and co-hosted events revenues; all as
determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Operating Revenues do not include: (i) interest income; (ii) income from sale
of assets; (iii) insurance proceeds; or (iv) City funding pursuant to this
Agreement,

“Party Room” refers to a room within the Warming House that can be
arranged in multiple configurations and is appropriate for parties, small
corporate gatherings, and other private events as shown in Exhibit B.

“Person” means any individual, general partnership, limited partnership,
limited liability partnership, corporation, joint venture, trust, business trust,
limited liability company, cooperative, or association, and the successors and
assigns of any of the foregoing and, unless the context otherwise requires, the
singular will include the plural, and the masculine gender will include the
feminine and the neuter, and vice versa,

“Proposed Operating Budget” means any annual Budget with respect to the
operation of Jacobson Plaza proposed by the Food and Beverage Operator for
the City’s approval.

“Smallwares” shall refer to the service ware, utensils, crockery, glassware,
dishware, and cutlery to be used in the food and beverage operation.

“Term” is as defined in Section 7.1 of this Agreement.
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mm) “Title Sponsors” refers to the Title Sponsorship Agreements the City has
entered for Jacobson Plaza at Falls Park, Pawsible Dog Park, T, Denny
Sanford Splash Pad, and any other naming agreements that the City may enter
during the term of this Agreeiment.

nn) “Warming House” shall refer to the flexible use building adjacent to the
Gathering Hall that includes a Party Room, Flexible Use Space, as wel! as
areas for the rental of skates, offices, first aid, and storage as shown in
Exhibit B.

Section 2.  Engagement of WPMI; Scope of Services.

2.1 Engagement.

a)  General Scope. The City hereby engages the Food and Beverage Operator
during the Term of this Agreement as the exclusive provider of the Food and
Beverage Services for the entire Jacobson Plaza site, except for as agreed
upon in the Agreement. The Jacobson Plaza site is identified on Exhibit A.
Food and Beverage Operator accepts the engagement and will perform the
Food and Beverage Services and event imanagement during the Term. The
Food and Beverage Operator will at all times be an independent contractor,
and this Agreement will not in any way create or form a partnership or joint
venture with the City and the Food and Beverage Operator. No agent or
employee of the Food and Beverage Operator will, under any circumstances,
be deemed an agent or employee of the City. As an independent contractor,
the Food and Beverage Operator and its employees will not be within the
protection or coverage of the City’s workers’ compensation insurance, nor
will the Food and Beverage Operator and its employees be entitled to any
current or future benefits provided to the City’s employees. The City will not
be responsible for withholding social security taxes, income taxes, or
unemployment compensation taxes from payments made by the City to the
Food and Beverage Operator. The Food and Beverage Operator’s provision of
Food and Beverage Services and performance of the duties under this
Agreement will be in Food and Beverage Operator’s own name and subject to
the limitations of this Agreement.

b) Food and Beverage Services.

(i) Gathering Hall Food Service/Hours of Operation. The Food and
Beverage Operator will provide Food and Beverage Services during all
events held at the Gathering Hall and within Jacobson Plaza as
depicted on Exhibit B. The Food Service will be provided during
hours to adequately meet public demand and when it is most beneficial
to patrons and refiective of Gathering Hall usage (“Business Houts”).
The Food and Beverage Operator shall establish Holiday Hours that
are beneficial to patrons. The Food and Beverage Operator shall set
Business Hours and Holiday Hours in consultation with the Contract
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Administrator. The Gathering Hall shall be operated in accordance
with park purposes, and private events shall not conflict with peak
park hours, unless the Food and Beverage Operator has received
express permission from the City to host such an event during such
times. The Food and Beverage Operator will furnish all management,
supervision, labor, and other services as required, which is consistent
with generally accepted operations of a high-quality Food Service
during Business and Holiday Hours. Notwithstanding the next
sentence, failure of the Food and Beverage Operator to staff and
operate the Gathering Hall during Business and Holiday Hours shall be
a material breach of the Agreement and cause for termination at the
City’s sole discretion. Food and Beverage Operator will determine
whether to stay open during inclement weather. If the Food and
Beverage Operator determines to remain open, the City will not be
responsible for clearing sidewalks, removing snow from the parking
lot, and cleaning the common areas should the decision be made to
close the park.

Concessions. The Food and Beverage Operator will provide and sell to
individual customers, food, beverages, and Merchandise from
permanent or portable stands, carts, kiosks, or food trucks for all
events at the Gathering Hall and within Jacobson Plaza. The Food and
Beverage Operator will post, display, or make otherwise digitally
available all menu items and prices at all permanent and portable
stands for food, beverages, and Merchandise offered for sale. All signs
must be consistent with the graphics of Jacobson Plaza and the sign
templates must be approved by the Contract Administrator.
Handwritten signs are not permitted,

Catered Events. The Food and Beverage Operator will provide all
Catering Sales including serving tables, bars, linens, place settings,
other supplies and materials, and appropriate room and table décor on
a timely basis for all Catered Events located in Jacobson Plaza as
depicted on Exhibit A. Food and Beverage Operator will remove
serving tables, bars, linens, place settings, and room and table décor
immediately following the conclusion of each Catered Event. Food
and Beverage Operator may provide digitally available catering menus
utilizing Jacobson Plaza’s logos. At the termination of the Agreement,
the Food and Beverage Operator will assign to the City, or the
succeeding Food and Beverage Operator selected by the City, all
catering contracts and catering deposits for Catered Events scheduled
to occur after the effective date of termination.

Vending Machines. The Food and Beverage Operator may provide
vending machines for use in times and locations as approved by the
Contract Administrator, Vending prices will be established by the
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v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Food and Beverage Operator in consultation with the Contract
Administrator.

Merchandise. The Food and Beverage Operator may sell Merchandise
as mutually agreed upon by the Contract Administrator.

Equipment/Supplies. Food and Beverage Operator will be responsible
for providing all food, beverages, Merchandise, marketing materials,
Smallwares, and employee uniforms and other noncapital equipment.
The Food and Beverage Operator will also provide the Food and
Beverage Services office equipment, computers, software, and point-
of-sale systems. All costs associated with providing the foregoing will
be paid from the Operating Account, All the foregoing must be stored
at the Gathering Hall or other on-site faciiities at Jacobson Plaza and at
no other location without the Contract Administrator’s prior approval.
Day-to-day replacements of and repairs to the foregoing will be an
Operating Expense. Repairs and replacements shall be made in a
timely manner and shall not accumulate over time to surpass the
$5,000 threshold. The City will not be responsible for damage to or
loss of any of the foregoing items. The City will not be responsible for
damage to or loss of the foregoing items resulting from a power
failure, flood, fire, explosion, or other causes. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the City will make available to the Food and Beverage
Operator property insurance proceeds received by the City, if any, as a
result of such loss, under policies of property insurance maintained by
the City.

Janitorial Services. The Food and Beverage Operator shall provide all
janitorial and cleaning related to the Gathering Hall and its kitchen and
dining areas. The Food and Beverage Operator shall be responsible for
light duty cleaning of the Party Room and the Flexible Use Space after
any food and beverage operator’s scheduled events in those areas,
returning the facilities back to the condition prior to the event, Food
and Beverage Operator will be responsible for light cleaning of the
Common Space inclusive of public restrooms during periods agreed
upon by the Contract Administrator and Food and Beverage Operator,
The Food and Beverage Operator shall also take care to clean up any
outdoor areas where Food and Beverage Services may be provided.,

Trash and Waste Removal. The Food and Beverage Operator shall be
responsible to remove trash to on-site dumpsters and provide for
replacement of trash liners in the Gathering Hall, as well as Flexible
Use Space and Party Room located in the Warming House, and
outdoor areas when the Food and Beverage Operator schedules events
in those areas.

Pest Control. Food and Beverage Operator shall be responsible for pest

9
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(x)

(xi)

(xi)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

control inside the Gathering Hall.

Payment of Expenses. The Food and Beverage Operator will pay,
when due, all expenses from the Operating Account.

Event Scheduling. The Food and Beverage Operator will cooperatively
schedule with Sioux Falls Parks and Recreation special events and
cross-promoted events that combine activities with Food and Beverage
Service and/or Catered Events. The Food and Beverage Operator shall
give the Contract Administrator a minimum of ten days advance notice
for private events to ensure Parks and Recreation staffing for
operations of Jacobson Plaza.

Network and Phone Service Access. The Food and Beverage Operator
shall have a backup plan for Internet connectivity that will serve the
point-of-sale and phone system in the event there is Internet or other
utility disruption,

Priority Use. The Food and Beverage Operator shall collaborate with
Sioux Falls Parks and Recreation to establish City priorities for use of
the Flexible Use Space and Party Room in accordance with Section
3.2(c) of this Agreement.

Marketing Plan, The Food and Beverage Operator will develop an
annual marketing plan and engage in marketing, advertising,
solicitation, and promotional activities as necessaty and appropriate to
develop the potential of the Gathering Hall, Flexible Use Space, and
Party Room located in Jacobson Plaza, and the cultivation of broad
community support for the utilization of the Gathering Hall, Flexible

Use Space, and Party Room located in Jacobson Plaza. The City will

retain the sole authority and responsibility to name any Jacobson Plaza
facilities and their respective components. The Food and Beverage
Operator will work in conjunction with the Contract Administrator to
name and/or brand the Gathering Hall, as well as determining
appropriate exterior signage on or around the Gathering Hall.

Comply with Laws. The Food and Beverage Operator will maintain,
manage, and operate the Food and Beverage Services provided for in
this Agreement in compliance with all laws and with the periodic
approvals of the City required pursuant to this Agreement, or as
otherwise required by law.

Social Media and Websites. The Food and Beverage Operator will
maintain and manage websites, social media platforms, and utilize
other current and subsequently available Internet-based technologies to
market, promote, and advertise the Gathering Hall located in Jacobson
Plaza, along with Food and Beverage Services within Jacobson Plaza.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

The Food and Beverage Operator’s social media and websites shall not
link to any web pages, social media, or Internet sites that are political,
religious, indecent, scandalous, immoral, or illegal in nature or could
reasonably be deemed offensive or not compliant with community
standards of good taste or applicable law. The Food and Beverage
Operator shall cross-link the Gathering Hall’s websites to the City’s
website. The Food and Beverage Operator will maintain the Gathering
Hail’s websites. The City will aliot Food and Beverage Operator
banner presence on the City’s website. The City’s website
(siouxfalls.gov) will not be used for the sale and display of commercial
advertising in any form including banner advertisements, shopping
carts, buttons, and text advertisements, The City will use an exit box
notification whenever a visitor chooses to use a hypertext link to the
Food and Beverage Operators website for Jacobson Plaza, stating the
user is leaving the City’s website.

Operating Plan. The Food and Beverage Operator will develop and
deliver to the Contract Administrator the Operating Plan as foliows:

i. Private rental policies.

ii. Alcoholic beverage management plan.
iii. Hours of operation.

iv. Staffing plan.

v. Delivery management plan.

Comprehensive Sales and Inventory Control Program. Food and
Beverage Operator shall develop and implement a comprehensive sale
and inventory control program to ensure an optimal cost of goods sold
ratio.

Legal. Food and Beverage Operator, after consultation with the City
Attorney, ot his or her designee, will institute or defend against, with
legal counsel chosen by the Food and Beverage Operator, any legal
actions or proceedings initiated by contracting parties and others, and
those legal actions or proceedings necessary ot appropriate in
connection with the provision of Food dnd Beverage Seivices at
Jacobson Plaza, including, without limitation, to collect charges, rents,
or other revenues due, or to cancel, terminate, ot sue for damages
under any license, occupancy agreement, rental agreement, advertising
agreement, sponsorship agreement, supplier agreement, service
contract, sales contract, or any other contract or agreement for any
breach or default by any licensee, lessee, advertiser, concessionaire or
other contract party, with the defense and litigation costs and expenses,
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(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

including reasonable attorneys’ fees, to be considered Operating
Expenses. The City will fully cooperate with Food and Beverage
Operator in its exercise of its rights and obligations under this Section

2.1 {(b)}{xix).

Maintain a Master Schedule/Records. The Food and Beverage
Operator shall maintain a master set of records and schedules for the
Food and Beverage Services and event management provided.

Contracts. The Food and Beverage Operator shall negotiate, execute
(in Food and Beverage Operator’s own name), deliver, and administer
service, sponsorships and other contracts involving the day-to-day
operations of the Food and Beverage Services and event management
in Jacobson Plaza. The Food and Beverage Operator will consult with
the Contract Administrator (input and comment), in advance of
contract execution, regarding the terms of contracts providing major
sources of revenue for Jacobson Plaza, The Food and Beverage
Operator shall use good faith efforts to include in any such agreement
standard indemnification and insurance obligations on the part of each
vendor, licensee, or service provider, as is customary for the type of
service or obligation being provided or performed by such parties. The
Food and Beverage Operator shall obtain the prior approval of the
Contract Administrator (which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed) before entering into any such contracts with a
term that expires after the term of this Agreement, unless such
contract, by its express terms, can be terminated by the Food and
Beverage Operator or the City following expiration of the term without
any penalty. In connection with any contracts, the Food and Beverage
Operator shall use good faith efforts to include in such documents:

(1) the right of Manager to assign, without cost, all of its rights and
obligations to the City or to any successor Food and Beverage
Operator retained by the City upon the expiration or termination of this
Agreement; and (ii) the right of the City to assign, without cost, its
rights and obligations to any successor Food and Beverage Operator
retained by the City.

Cash or Point-of-Sale Registers. The Food and Beverage Operator will
use computerized cash or point-of-sale registers for the recordation of
all Gross Revenues.

Marketing and Promotion, The Food and Beverage Operator will be
responsible for marketing and promoting its Food and Beverage
Services and event management for the public’s use. The Food and
Beverage Operator will work proactively to market and advertise its
Food and Beverage Services in order to seek out customers willing to
book events. The Food and Beverage Operator will maintain food and
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beverage service information on the Jacobson Plaza websites,
Facebook pages, and other technologies now existing and developed in
the future,

Liens. The Food and Beverage Operator will operate the Food and
Beverage Services in a manner so as to not permit any liens to attach
to the Gathering Hall, Warming House, equipment, inventory,
Leasehold Improvements, uniforms, Smallwares, or any other personal
property and consumables utilized for Food and Beverage Services.

Approval of the City. To the extent the City’s approval is required
under the terms of this Agreement, the written approval of the Contract
Administrator will constitute the City’s approval, except to the extent
the approval of another party is expressly required by the terms of this
Agreement or to the extent the City provides written notice to the Food
and Beverage Operator that approval is required pursuant to the City’s
charter or ordinances. City approval (or denial) will be issued timely
under the applicable circumstances, and approvals will not be
unreasonably withheld.

Honor of Title Sponsorship Agreements. The City retains the sole right
to name Jacobson Plaza facilities, except to the extent that the City
will work collaboratively with Food and Beverage Services to
name/brand the Gathering Hall. The City has already entered into the
Title Sponsorship Agreements for Jacobson Plaza at Falls Park,
Pawsible Dog Park, and T, Denny Sanford Splash Pad. The Food and
Beverage Operator will fully observe and comply with all marketing,
advertising, and operational requirements for use of the title sponsors’
names and logos in connection with the Gathering Hall located in
Jacobson Plaza, Pawsible Dog Park, and T. Denny Sanford Splash
Pad, and future title sponsorships located within Jacobson Plaza.

(xxvii) Membership/Discounts. Currently, the Food and Beverage Operator,

under its separate management agreement for the Washington Pavilion
and Orpheum, offer membership and/or discounts at the Washington
Pavilion and Orpheum. Cross discounts at Jacobson Plaza are
prohibited unless the Contract Administrator authorizes in advance.

(xviii)Advertisement/Sponsorships. Food and Beverage Operator will market

s:\as\athates\ates005.doex

advertising and/or sponsorships for Jacobson Plaza, The Food and
Beverage Operator will retain, invoice, and collect all amounts due,
and count as Operating Revenue all payments collected by the Food
and Beverage Operator on account of (i) sponsorship/advertising
contracts sold and executed in Food and Beverage Operator’s name;
and (ii) sponsorship/advertising contracts sold by the City but executed
by the Food and Beverage Operator. The content and form of all
advertising, sponsorship, and promotional material under this
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Agreement (the “Advertisement Material”) shall be subject to the prior
written approval of the Contract Administrator, which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding the previous sentence,
the Contract Administrator has the right to register objections to the
Advertisement Material which it believes does not reflect well on the
City or its image. It shall be deemed reasonable for the Contract
Administrator to reject, in whole or in part, any Advertisement
Material that it, in its sole discretion, determines is inconsistent with
this Agreement or may violate the rights of others. Advertisement
Material shall contain: (i) no misleading, unwarranted, exaggerated, or
doubtful claims or statements, and Sponsor guarantees the truth of all
claims and statements made in all Advertisement Materials; (ii) no
infringement of another person’s or entity’s rights, whether by
plagiarism, copyright or trademark infringement, or otherwise; (iit) no
disparagement of any competitor or any competifor’s goods or
services; (iv) no statements or announcements that are slanderous,
obscene, profane, vulgar, repulsive, or offensive, either in theme or in
treatment; (v) no mention by name of other generally advertised
products or services; (vi) no lotteries, drawings, or other contests
prohibited by law; (vii) the sale of tobacco as principal business; and
(viii) the operation of an establishment engaging in exotic dancing.

2.2 Miscellaneous.

2.2.1 Food Service Areas. The location of all Food and Beverage Services areas, whether
temporary, portable, or permanent, will be designated by the Contract
Administrator. The Food and Beverage Operator will acquire no legal right to any
location once assigned to a particular location, The Contract Administrator reserves
the right to require the Food and Beverage Operator fo move portable Food and
Beverage Services operations and equipment to accommodate specific events.
Nothing in this Agreement will limit or qualify the right of the Contract
Administrator to free and unobstructed use, occupation, and control of the
Gathering Hall, Warming House, and Common Space and ingress and egress for
itself and the public.

2.2.2 Rules and Regulations, The Food and Beverage Operator will operate the Food and
Beverage Services in accordance with the City’s Policies and Procedures and
internal Food and Beverage Operator adopted policies and procedures.

2.2.3 Food and Beverage Services Allowed at Other Locations with the Contract
Administrator’s Approval. The Food and Beverage Operator may provide Food
and Beverage Services outside of the Jacobson Plaza site utilizing the Gathering
Hall kitchen, equipment, and Smallwares at locations within the city only with the
Contract Administrator’s approval.
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2.2.4 Qutside Food. Notwithstanding any other section of this Agreement, the City may
from time to time bring in outside food for its consumption while using areas of
Jacobson Plaza at the Food and Beverage Operator’s discretion.

Section 3. City Responsibilities.

3.1 Generally. Sioux Falls Parks and Recreation shall manage and program the skate
ribbon, splash pad, playground, and other park features and Warming House,
including park and recreation activities at Jacobson Plaza in a manner that
optimizes the ability of the Food and Beverage Operator to promote Food and
Beverage Services.

3.2  Specific City Responsibilities:

a) Day-to-Day Management. Sioux Falls Parks and Recreation shall provide all
day-to-day management, programiming, and operational staffing of the skate
ribbon, splash pad, playground, and other park features and Warming House
at Jacobson Plaza, including point-of-sale, skate rental functions, safety
monitor functions, ice maintenance and maintenance for ice equipment.

b) Fees. Skate rentals and skate ribbon time fees during public skate hours for
public skating shall be retained by the City.

¢) Warming House Priority Usage. The City retains priority use of the Patty
Room and Flexible Use Space while the skate ribbon is actively open to the
public for ice skating. Priority use of the Flexible Use Space and Patty Room
is granted to the City until 60 days prior to the beginning of each calendar
quarter, at which time, the Food and Beverage Operator takes over priority.
However, both parties will agree to cooperate, where feasible, on scheduling
outside these prioritization areas.

d) Skate Ribbon Maintenance. The City will maintain all equipment to operate
the skate ribbon, including, but not limited to, an ice resurfacer, ice edger, and
various hand tools, and maintenance equipment.

e) First Aid. Sioux Falls Parks and Recreation shall supply first aid supplies for
the public. Food and Beverage Operator shall provide access to first aid
supplies for the public; however, the Food and Beverage Operator shall have
adequate first aid supplies within the Gathering Hall.

f)  Promotion. Sioux Falls Parks and Recreation shall work with the Food and
Beverage Operator to cross-promote Food and Beverage Services and
collaborate with the Food and Beverage Operator in hosting special events.

g)  Skate Rental/Maintenance. Sioux Falls Parks and Recreation shall manage
skate rentals and maintenance thereof.
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h)

R,

k)

s

p)

q)
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Snow Removal. The City shall complete all snow removal for the parking lot,
access road, and sidewalks, and will do so expeditiously to accommodate the
schedule or regular use of the various portions of Jacobson Plaza.

Network and Phone Service Access. The City shall provide Internet
connectivity that will serve the Food and Beverage Operator’s point-of-sale
and phone system.

Utilities. The City shall pay all charges for use and consumption of utilities
serving the Gathering Hall, Warming House, and Common Space, which
includes but is not limited to electric, natural gas, water and sewer, and
garbage service.

Janitortal Services. The City will provide janitorial services for the Warming
House and Common Space including the public restrooms located in Jacobson
Plaza. Additionally, the City shall provide cleaning for the exterior of the
Gathering Hall including window washing, maintenance, and cleaning of the
exterior envelope of the Gathering Hall.

Janitorial Supplies. The City shall provide normal restroom paper products
and cleaning supplies and small equipment needed to per form the janitorial
tasks of general areas of Jacobson Plaza.

Trash, Waste, and Containers, The City will provide all trash and recycling
containers and dumpsters for outdoor areas and within the Warming House
and public restrooms.

Wi-Fi Access. The City may provide public Wi-Fi access at its discretion.

Crowd Control, The City will provide crowd control ropes, fencing, and queue
lines for the ice ribbon.

Provide Pest Control. The City will provide and pay for all pest control from a
provider licensed by the state of South Dakota for the Warming House,
Common Space, and exterior of the Gathering Hall,

Social Media. The City will preapprove all social media and associated
websites linked to the City.

Booking/Reservation Coordination for Gathering Hall, Party Room, and
Warming House. The City will meet with the Food and Beverage Operator
regularly to schedule Parks and Recreation’s use of the Gathering Hall, Pacty
Room, and Flexible Use Space with the Warming House.

City’s Internal Use of the Gathering Hall and Warming House. Regarding the
City’s internal use of these facilities, the City may schedule City events at
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these facilities at no cost that do not conflict with food and beverage
scheduled events or peak revenue generating hours.

t)  Digital Marketing/Social Media. The City will utilize digital marketing and
social media for increased visibility.

u) Capital Improvements and Capital Equipment. The City is responsible for all
Capital Improvements and Capital Equipment in accordance with Section 12.4
of this Agreement.

v}  Ground Maintenance and Janitorial Service. The City is responsible for
general ground maintenance and janitorial services of all outdoor park
facilities located in Jacobson Plaza, the Warming House, and the Coramon
Space to the extent as otherwise described in this Agreement. If additional
cleaning is desired for special events or extended hours, Sioux Falls Parks and
Recreation will supply access to the cleaning supplies to the Food and
Beverage Operator.

w) Standard of Care. Sioux Falls Parks and Recreation shall ensure that Jacobson
Plaza and all amenities are maintained and managed in a manner that meets
the City’s standard of care and provides a welcoming and positive experience
for the public users,

Section 4.  Aceess.

4.1  Access to the Gathering Hall located in Jacobson Plaza. Representatives of the City
will have the right to enter all portions of the Gathering Hall located in Jacobson
Plaza providing the Food and Beverage Operator with a minimum of 24-hour
advance notice when possible. The City may enter to inspect the Gathering Hall, to
observe Food and Beverage Operator’s performance and obligations under this
Agreement, to install, remove, adjust, repair, replace or otherwise handle any
equipment, utilities or other matters in, on or about the Gathering Hall, and to do
any act or thing that the City may be obligated or have the rigiit to do under this
Agreement or otherwise. Nothing contained in this Section 4.1 is intended, nor may
be construed to limit any other rights of the City under this Agreement. Nothing in
this Section 4.1 will impose or may be construed to impose upon the City any
independent obligation to construct or maintain or make repairs, replacements,
alterations, additions or improvements nor create any independent liability for any
failure to do so. The City agrees to not impair the ability of the Food and Beverage
Operator to effectively operate the Gathering Hall,

Section 5.  Confidentiality/Nondisclosure.

5.1 Confidentiality/Nondisclosure, The parties agree they will keep confidential any
and all proprietary information of the other party, or of any third party with whom
Food and Beverage Operator contracts, or of any third party with whom the City
contracts, when the confidential and proprietary information is conspicuously
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matked as confidential or proprietary or otherwise indicating in writing as
confidential or proprietary, and when the City Attorney’s Office has concluded the
information must not be made available to the public under the open records
requirements applicable to the City, Fach party will only use confidential and
proprietary information for the performance of its respective obligations under this
Agreement. A party will designate as confidential and proprietary information the
designating party in good faith believes is confidential and proprietary. Neither
party will divulge any confidential or proprietary information, in whole or in part,
to any third party without the prior written consent of the other party; provided,
however, confidential and proprictary information may be disclosed to the party’s
attorneys and professional consultants; provided further, the confidential and
proprietary information may be required to be disclosed to the public pursuant to
applicable law, including all open records requirements applicable to the City and
its operations and facilities or as directed by order of a court of competent
jurisdiction, If the City Attorney’s Office determines the information is proprietary
and confidential and protected from public access under applicable law, the City
will not make available to the public the information. If the City Attorney’s Office
concludes in its opinion the information marked confidential or proprietary must be
made available to the public under applicable law, the City Attorney’s Office will
advise Food and Beverage Operator of its decision and give Food and Beverage
Operator a reasonable opportunity to obtain a court order to keep the information
confidential. If Food and Beverage Operator does not proceed with reasonable
diligence to file for and obtain a court order, the City will then make the public the
information available. A party in default of its obligations to maintain
confidentiality will provide notice to the other party of any known violations of this
Section 5.1. Further, each party will endeavor in good faith to provide notice to the
other party prior to any disclosure required by applicable law or order of a court of
competent jurisdiction (it being understood notice may not be possible before
disclosure is required). The restrictions upon confidentiality and use of the
confidential and proprietary information of a party set forth in this Section 5.1 do
not apply to information which the other party can demonstrate was publicly
available or lawfully in its possession at the time of its disclosure to it by the other

party.

5.2  Confidential Information. Upon the request of the City, the Food and Beverage
Operator will furnish to the City copies of all agreements and amendments thereto
executed by the Food and Beverage Operator and third parties with respect to
Jacobson Plaza. In the event a member of the public requests a copy of an
agreement between the Food and Beverage Operator and a third party, the City
agrees to notify the Food and Beverage Operator of the request, and the Food and
Beverage Operator will timely set forth its legal objection, if any, whether the
agreement may be made available to the public. If Food and Beverage Operator has
no legal objection, or if the City Attorney’s Office determines the Agreement must
be made available to the public under applicable law, then the City will advise the
Food and Beverage Operator of its decision and give the Food and Beverage
Operator a reasonable opportunity to obtain a court order to keep the information
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5.3

Section 6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

confidential. If no court order is obtained, the City will make available the
Agreement requested by a member of the public, If the City Attorney’s Office
determines the Agreement, or some portions thereof, are protected from public
access under applicable law, the City will not make available the Agreement, or the
confidential potions thereof, requested by the member of the public. The Contract
Manager and the City agree this Agreement is not protected from public access and
will be made available to any member of the public upon request.

Specific Performance. Each party agrees the provisions of this Section 5.3 are
reasonable and necessary to protect the interests of the other party and the
disclosing party’s remedies at law for a breach of any of the provisions of this
Section 5.3 will be inadequate and, in connection with any breach, the disclosing
party will be entitled, in addition to any other remedies (whether at law or in
equity), to temporary and permanent injunctive relief without the necessity of
proving actual damages or immediate or irreparable harm, or of the posting of a
bond. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a court of competent jurisdiction
determines any of the provisions of this Section 5.3 are unreasonable, the
disclosing party agrees to a reaffirmation of those provisions, but with any limits
the court finds to be reasonable, and the other party will not assert the provision
should be eliminated in its entirety by the court.

Compensation and Operating Expenses.

Base Fee. For all Food and Beverage Services and event management provided by
the Food and Beverage Operator pursuant to this Agreement, Food and Beverage
Operator will receive a base fee (“Base Fee”) of $6,750 per month January 1, 2025
through June 30, 2026 and $5,000 per month beginning on July 1, 2026, increasing
3% per year beginning on July 1, 2027 and on each July 1 thereafter. The Base Fee
then due the Food and Beverage Operator will be paid as a disbursement from the
Operating Account in equal monthly installments, in arrears, no later than the first
day of the month after the month for which Food and Beverage Services are
provided by the Food and Beverage Operator pursuant to this Agreement.

Incentive Fee. In addition to the annual Base Fee, the Food and Beverage Operator
may earn an Incentive Fee each year beginning on July [, 2026. The Incentive Fee
shall be 20% of any positive Adjusted Operating Income. The Incentive Fee will be
paid as a disbursement from the Operating Account upon acceptance by the City
after completion of any limited scope audit or agreed upon procedures audit for
that year under Section 13.1, below.

Exclusive Compensation. The amounts payable to the Food and Beverage Operator
pursuant to this Section 6 are the only amounts to which the Food and Beverage
Operator is entitled for all Food and Beverage Services and event management the
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6.4

Section 7.

7.1

Section 8.

8.1

Food and Beverage Operator rendetred to the City pursuant to this Agreement for
Food and Beverage Services or otherwise.

Operating Income (Losses). The City will be responsible for all Operating Losses.
All Operating Income will be retained in the Operating Account. However, upon
the City’s request from time to time, the Food and Beverage Operator will
distribute to the City from the Operating Account funds not otherwise required to
pay current and projected Operating Expenses or for planned expenditures for
Capital Equipment or Capital Improvements.

Term.

Term. This Agreement will commence on the last to occur of the signing of this
Agreement by the Mayor, the attestation of this Agreement by the City Clerk, the
approval of this Agreement by resolution adopted by the City Council, and the
expiration of the time within which the City Council’s approval of this Agreement
may be challenged by referendum following the publishing of the City Council’s
resolution (the “Effective Date”) and will continue in full force and effect, for four
and a half years, through June 30, 2029, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the
provisions of this Agreement (“Term”). The Food and Beverage Operator may
request in writing by January 31 in the final year of the Agreement, a request to
extend the Agreement for an additional five- (5-) year period. Upon receipt of the
extension request, the City may at its discretion, based upon an evaluation of the
Food and Beverage Operator’s compliance with the terms and conditions of the
Agreement, grant a five- (5-) year extension in accordance with the Code of
Ordinances of Sioux Falls, SD, in effect at the time of the extension. Should the
Food and Beverage Operator fail to submit a written extension request, the
Agreement shall terminate at the conclusion of the Agreement’s term, The City
reserves the right to terminate the Agreement for material breach in accordance
with the terms and conditions set forth in Section 17.

Upon termination of this Agreement, the Food and Beverage Operator will yield
and deliver peaceably to the City possession of the Gathering Hall (including any
personal property of the City) and shall comply with Section 17.4 of this
Agreement, Further, the Food and Beverage Operator agrees to be responsible for
cleaning the Gathering Hall to the satisfaction of the City.

Personnel

Generally. Food and Beverage Operator will employ, train, and supervise the
personnel with appropriate qualifications and experience necessary to operate Food
and Beverage Services and event management in accordance with a standard of
similar high-quality event and food service facilities, in sufficient number to
provide all the Food and Beverage Services and event management required of the
Food and Beverage Operator under this Agreement. All personnel will be
employees, agents, or independent contractors of the Food and Beverage Operator,
and not of the City. The Food and Beverage Operator will select the number,
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function, qualifications, and compensation, including salary and benefits, of its
employees and will control the terms and conditions of employment relating fo its
employees. The Food and Beverage Operator agrees to use reasonable and prudent
judgment in the selection and supervision of its employees and will make its best
effort to employ persons who are courteous and efficient, and who will not use
impropet language or act in a loud or boisterous manner while performing the
Foods Service and Catering Sales. Upon the request of the Contract Administrator,
the Food and Beverage Operator will meet with the Contract Administrator to
address any improper or substandard employee performance. The Food and
Beverage Operator will take corrective action necessary to address the improper or
substandard employee performance.

a) Staff, Food and Beverage Operator will at alf times during the Term employ a
full-time Food and Beverage staff, which at a minimum will include a
management level position to oversee operations (the “general managet”),
and/or an executive chef, as well as positions that provide adequate back-up to
cover the offering of high-guality Food and Beverage Services (collectively,
“Food and Beverage Staff”), The Food and Beverage Operator may, at its sole
discretion, share staff with other WPMI managed facilities except only to the
extent that the staffing expenses directly related to the Food and Beverage
Services and event management at Jacobson Plaza are paid from the
Operating Account. The Contract Administrator will review and have the right
to approve the Food and Beverage Operator’s proposed on-site General
Manager during the term of the Agreement.

b)  Staff Performance Issues. At any time during the Term, the Contract
Administrator may notify the Food and Beverage Operator if it believes there
is a performance problem with the General Manager or any other positions.
The Food and Beverage Operator will meet with the Contract Administrator to
discuss any problems regarding staffing for Food and Beverage Services and
to propose appropriate steps to address problems.

¢) Employee Uniforms. The Food and Beverage Operator will ensure all of its
employees, agents, and independent contractors performing Food and
Beverage Operator duties at the Jacobson Plaza will be neatly attired and all
nonmanagement staff will be attired in clean, commercially attractive
uniforms, which will be subject to the Contract Administrator’s approval,
Food and Beverage Operator will provide and maintain uniforms for all
nonmanagement staff, the cost of which will be an Operating Expense.

d) Employee Records. The Food and Beverage Operator will maintain accurate
records of the names, addresses, and other legal iden